
 
  
                       SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 
                             WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549 
                                 
                              ------------------- 
                                         
                                    FORM 10-Q 
                                         
                              ------------------- 
                                         
            Quarterly Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15 (d) of the 
                         Securities Exchange Act of 1934 
 
                  For the quarterly period ended March 31, 1999 
                                         
                      Commission File Numbers: 333-57285-01 
                                               333-57285 
                                         
                                  Mediacom LLC 
                          Mediacom Capital Corporation* 
           (Exact names of Registrants as specified in their charters) 
                                         
               New York                           06-1433421 
               New York                           06-1513997 
      (State or other jurisdiction of          (I.R.S. Employer 
             incorporation or organization)   Identification Numbers) 
 
                              100 Crystal Run Road 
                           Middletown, New York 10941 
                    (Address of principal executive offices) 
                                         
                                  914-695-2600 
              (Registrants' telephone number including area code) 
                                         
 
      Indicate by check mark whether the Registrants (1) have filed all reports 
required to be filed by Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the 
Registrants were required to file such reports), and (2) have been subject to 
such filing requirements for the past 90 days: 
 
                      Yes   X       No 
                          ----         ---- 
 
      Indicate the number of shares outstanding of the Registrants' common 
stock:  Not Applicable 
 
     *Mediacom Capital Corporation meets the conditions set forth in General 
Instruction H (1) (a) and (b) of  Form 10-Q and is therefore filing this form 
with the reduced disclosure format. 



 
  
                         MEDIACOM LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES 
                     
                                   FORM 10-Q 
                   FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 1999 
                                         
                                     INDEX 
                                         
                                         
                                    PART I 
                                    ------ 
                                                                   Page 
                                                                   ---- 
 
  Item 1.    Financial Statements.................................   2 
  
               Consolidated Financial Statements of Mediacom LLC 
                 and Subsidiaries.................................   2 
  
               Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.........   6 
  
               Financial Statement of Mediacom Capital Corporation  11 
  
               Note to Financial Statement........................  12 
  
  Item 2.    Management's Discussion and Analysis  of 
               Financial Condition and Results of Operations......  13 
  
  Item 3.    Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about 
               Market Risk........................................  18 
  
                                    PART II 
                                    ------- 
                                         
Item 6.      Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K ....................  19 



 
  
                                     PART I 
                                     ------ 
                                         
ITEM 1.    FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
                         MEDIACOM LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
                          CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
                         (All dollar amounts in 000's) 
 
 
 
  
                                                           March 31,   December 31, 
                                                             1999         1998 
                                                          -----------  ----------- 
                              ASSETS                      (Unaudited) 
                                                                 
  
Cash and cash equivalents                                $    1,350    $   2,212 
Subscriber accounts receivable, net of allowance 
 for doubtful accounts of $331 in 1999 
 and $298 in 1998                                             1,253        2,512 
Prepaid expenses and other assets                             1,768        1,712 
Investment in cable television systems: 
  Inventory                                                   8,149        8,240 
 
  Property, plant and equipment, at cost                    328,038      314,627 
  Less - accumulated depreciation                           (56,985)     (45,423) 
                                                         -----------    --------- 
 
  Property, plant and equipment, net                        271,053      269,204 
 
  Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization 
of $32,622 in 1999 and $26,307 in 1998                      147,443      150,928 
                                                         -----------    --------- 
 
Total investment in cable television systems                426,645      428,372 
 
Other assets, net of accumulated amortization 
of $4,518 in 1999 and $3,854 in 1998                         17,069       16,344 
                                                         ----------    ---------- 
 
     Total assets                                         $ 448,085    $ 451,152 
                                                         ==========    ========== 
 
                     LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY 
 
LIABILITIES 
Debt                                                      $ 345,304    $ 337,905 
Accounts payable                                              3,565        2,678 
Accrued expenses                                             30,595       29,446 
Subscriber advances                                           1,055        1,510 
Management fees payable                                         626          962 
Other liabilities                                               755          - 
                                                         ----------    ---------- 
 
     Total liabilities                                      381,900      372,501 
                                                         ----------    ---------- 
MEMBERS' EQUITY 
Capital contributions                                       124,990      124,990 
Accumulated deficit                                         (58,805)     (46,339) 
                                                         ----------    ---------- 
 
     Total members' equity                                   66,185       78,651 
                                                         ----------    ---------- 
 
     Total liabilities and members' equity                $ 448,085    $ 451,152 
                                                         ==========    ========== 
 
 
          See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements 
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                         MEDIACOM LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
                     CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 
                         (All dollar amounts in 000's) 
                                  (Unaudited) 
 
 
 
                                                        Three Months Ended March 31, 
                                                        --------------------------- 
                                                           1999            1998 
                                                        ---------       ----------- 
                                                                  
  
Revenues                                                 $ 36,000        $25,943 
  
Costs and expenses: 
  Service costs                                            11,825          9,822 
  Selling, general, and administrative expenses             7,201          5,303 
  Management fee expense                                    1,665          1,207 
  Depreciation and amortization                            20,402         11,229 
                                                         --------        -------- 
 
Operating loss                                             (5,093)        (1,618) 
                                                         --------        --------  
 
Interest expense, net                                       6,380          5,017 
Other expenses                                                993          3,340 
                                                         ---------       --------  
 
Net loss                                                 $(12,466)       $(9,975) 
                                                         =========       ======== 
 
 
          See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements 
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                         MEDIACOM LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
             CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN MEMBERS' EQUITY 
                         (All dollar amounts in 000's) 
 
 
 
 
  
                                                            
Balance, Commencement of Operations (March 12, 1996)            $  5,490 
  
     Capital Contributions                                         1,000 
  
     Net Loss                                                     (1,953) 
                                                                --------- 
Balance, December 31, 1996                                         4,537 
  
     Capital Contributions                                        24,500 
  
     Net Loss                                                     (4,596) 
                                                                --------- 
Balance, December 31, 1997                                        24,441 
  
     Capital Contributions                                        94,000 
  
     Net Loss                                                    (39,790) 
                                                                --------- 
Balance, December 31, 1998                                        78,651 
  
     Capital Contributions                                           - 
  
     Net Loss (unaudited)                                        (12,466) 
                                                                --------- 
Balance, March 31, 1999 (unaudited)                             $ 66,185 
                                                                ========= 
 
 
 
          See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements 
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                         MEDIACOM LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
                     CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
                         (All dollar amounts in 000's) 
                                  (Unaudited) 
 
 
 
 
                                                                         Three Months Ended March 31, 
                                                                        ----------------------------- 
                                                                            1999             1998 
                                                                         ----------       --------- 
                                                                                  
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
  Net loss                                                                $ (12,466)      $  (9,975) 
  Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash flows from operating 
   activities: 
     Accretion of interest on seller note                                        74              68 
     Depreciation and amortization                                           20,402          11,229 
     Non-cash other                                                             755               - 
     Decrease (increase) in subscriber accounts receivable                    1,259          (3,778) 
     Increase in prepaid expenses and other assets                              (56)         (1,281) 
     Increase in accounts payable                                               887           1,633 
     Increase in accrued expenses                                             1,149          10,288 
     (Decrease) increase in subscriber advances                                (455)             11 
     (Decrease) increase in management fees payable                            (336)            420 
                                                                           ---------       --------- 
 
   Net cash flows from operating activities                                  11,213           8,615 
                                                                           ---------       ---------  
CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
  Capital expenditures                                                      (15,907)         (4,486) 
  Acquisitions of cable television systems                                        -        (331,059) 
  Other, net                                                                   (255)            (54) 
                                                                           ---------       ---------  
 
   Net cash flows used in investing activities                              (16,162)       (335,599) 
                                                                           ---------       ---------  
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
  Net borrowings                                                            133,900         253,599 
  Repayment of debt                                                        (126,575)        (11,675) 
  Capital contributions                                                         -            94,000 
  Financing costs                                                            (3,238)         (8,472) 
                                                                           ---------       --------- 
 
   Net cash flows from financing activities                                   4,087         327,452 
                                                                           ---------       --------- 
 
   Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents                        (862)            468 
  
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of period                                2,212           1,027 
                                                                           ---------       ---------  
 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of period                                  $   1,350       $   1,495 
                                                                          ==========      ==========  
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION: 
  Cash paid during the period for interest                                $   1,930       $   4,690 
 
 
          See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements 
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                         MEDIACOM LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
                  NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
                         (All dollar amounts in 000's) 
                                  (Unaudited) 
 
 
(1)  Statement of Accounting Presentation and Other Information 
 
         Mediacom LLC ("Mediacom" and collectively with its subsidiaries, the 
"Company"), a New York limited liability company, was formed in July 1995 
principally to acquire and operate cable television systems. As of March 31, 
1999, the Company had acquired and was operating cable television systems in 
fourteen states, principally Alabama, California, Florida, Kentucky, Missouri 
and North Carolina. 
 
         Mediacom Capital Corporation ("Mediacom Capital"), a New York 
corporation wholly owned by Mediacom, was organized in March 1998 for the sole 
purpose of acting as co-issuer with Mediacom of $200,000 aggregate principal 
amount of 8 1/2% senior notes due 2008 (the "8 1/2% Senior Notes") and of 
$125,000 aggregate principal amount of 7 7/8% senior notes due 2011 (the "7 7/8% 
Senior Notes" and collectively with the 8 1/2% Senior Notes, the "Senior Notes") 
(see Note 3). Mediacom Capital has nominal assets and does not conduct 
operations of its own. The Senior Notes are joint and several obligations of 
Mediacom and Mediacom Capital, although Mediacom received all the net proceeds 
of the Senior Notes. 
 
         The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Mediacom 
and its subsidiaries and have been prepared in accordance with the rules and 
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission. Accordingly, certain 
information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements 
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles have been 
condensed or omitted. 
 
         The consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 1999 and 1998 are 
unaudited; however, in the opinion of management, such statements include all 
adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments, necessary for a 
fair presentation of the results for the periods presented. The accounting 
policies followed during such interim periods reported are in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles and are consistent with those applied 
during annual periods. For additional disclosures, including a summary of the 
Company's accounting policies, the interim financial statements should be read 
in conjunction with the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K, as amended 
(Registration Nos. 333-57285-01 and 333-57285). The results of operations for 
the interim periods are not necessarily indicative of the results that might be 
expected for future interim periods or for the full year ending December 31, 
1999. 
 
(2)  Acquisitions 
 
         The Company completed the undernoted acquisitions (the "Acquired 
Systems") in 1998. These acquisitions were accounted for using the purchase 
method of accounting, and accordingly, the purchase price of these acquisitions 
has been allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at their 
estimated fair values at their respective date of acquisition. The results of 
operations of the Acquired Systems have been included with those of the Company 
since the dates of acquisition. 
 
         On January 9, 1998, the Company acquired the assets of a cable 
television system serving approximately 17,200 subscribers in Clearlake, 
California and surrounding communities (the "Clearlake System") for a purchase 
price of $21,400. The purchase price has been allocated based on an independent 
appraisal as follows: approximately $5,973 to property, plant and equipment, and 
approximately $15,427 to intangible assets. Additionally, approximately $226 of 
direct acquisition costs has been allocated to other assets. In the first 
quarter of 1998, the Company recorded acquisition reserves related to this 
acquisition in the amount of approximately $370, which are included in accrued 
expenses. The acquisition of the Clearlake System and related closing costs and 
adjustments were financed with borrowings under the Company's bank credit 
facilities (see Note 3). 
 
         On January 23, 1998, the Company acquired the assets of cable 
television systems serving approximately 260,100 subscribers in various regions 
of the United States (the "Cablevision Systems") for a purchase price of 
approximately $308,200. The purchase price has been allocated based on an 
independent appraisal as follows: approximately $205,500 to property, plant and 
equipment, and approximately $102,700 to intangible assets. Additionally, 
approximately $3,500 of direct acquisition costs has been allocated to other 



assets. In the first quarter of 1998, the Company recorded acquisition reserves 
related to this acquisition in the amount of approximately $3,750, which are 
included in accrued expenses. The acquisition of the Cablevision Systems and 
related closing costs and adjustments were financed with equity contributions, 
borrowings under the Company's bank credit facilities, and other bank debt (see 
Note 3). 
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                         MEDIACOM LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
                  NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
                         (All dollar amounts in 000's) 
                                  (Unaudited) 
 
 
     On October 1, 1998, the Company acquired the assets of a cable television 
system serving approximately 3,800 subscribers in Caruthersville, Missouri (the 
"Caruthersville System") for a purchase price of $5,000.  The purchase price has 
been preliminarily allocated as follows: $2,000 to property, plant and 
equipment, and $3,000 to intangible assets.  Such allocations are subject to 
adjustments based upon the final appraisal information.  The final allocations 
of the purchase price are not expected to differ materially from the preliminary 
allocations.  The acquisition of the Caruthersville System and related closing 
costs and adjustments were financed with borrowings under the Company's bank 
credit facilities (see Note 3). 
 
(3)  Debt 
 
 
     As of March 31, 1999 and December 31, 1998, debt consisted of: 
 
 
 
                                                   March 31,       December 31, 
                                                    1999              1998 
                                                 ----------        ----------- 
                                                            
     Mediacom:                                                   
         8 1/2% Senior Notes (a)                  $200,000          $200,000 
         7 7/8% Senior Notes (b)                   125,000                 - 
                                                                 
     Subsidiaries:                                               
         Bank Credit Facilities (c)                 16,750           134,425 
         Seller Note (d)                             3,554             3,480 
                                                  --------          -------- 
                                                  $345,304          $337,905 
                                                  ========          ======== 
 
     (a) On April 1, 1998, Mediacom and Mediacom Capital jointly issued $200,000 
         aggregate principal amount of 8 1/2% Senior Notes due on April 15, 
         2008.  The 8 1/2% Senior Notes are unsecured obligations of the 
         Company, and the indenture for the 8 1/2% Senior Notes stipulates, 
         among other things, restrictions on incurrence of indebtedness, 
         distributions, mergers and asset sales and has cross-default provisions 
         related to other debt of the Company.  Interest accrues at 8 1/2% per 
         annum, beginning from the date of issuance and is payable semi-annually 
         on April 15 and October 15 of each year.  The 8 1/2% Senior Notes may 
         be redeemed at the option of Mediacom, in whole or part, at any time 
         after April 15, 2003, at redemption prices decreasing from 104.25% of 
         their principal amount to 100% in 2006, plus accrued and unpaid 
         interest. 
 
     (b) On February 26, 1999, Mediacom and Mediacom Capital jointly issued 
         $125,000 aggregate principal amount of 7 7/8% Senior Notes due on 
         February 15, 2011.  The 7 7/8% Senior Notes are unsecured obligations 
         of the Company, and the indenture for the 7 7/8% Senior Notes 
         stipulates, among other things, restrictions on incurrence of 
         indebtedness, distributions, mergers and asset sales and has cross- 
         default provisions related to other debt of the Company.  Interest 
         accrues at 7 7/8% per annum, beginning from the date of issuance and is 
         payable semi-annually on February 15 and August 15 of  
 
                                       7 



 
  
                         MEDIACOM LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
                  NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
                         (All dollar amounts in 000's) 
                                  (Unaudited) 
 
 
             each year, commencing on August 15, 1999. The 7 7/8% Senior Notes 
             may be redeemed at the option of Mediacom, in whole or part, at any 
             time after February 15, 2006, at redemption prices decreasing from 
             103.938% of their principal amount to 100% in 2008, plus accrued 
             and unpaid interest. 
 
        (c)  On June 24, 1997, the Company entered into an eight and one-half 
             year, $100,000 reducing revolver and term loan agreement (the 
             "Western Credit Agreement"). On January 23, 1998, the Company 
             entered into a separate eight and one-half year, $225,000 reducing 
             revolver and term loan agreement (the "Southeast Credit Agreement". 
             and, together with the Western Credit Agreement, the "Bank Credit 
             Agreements"). By separate amendments dated as of January 26, 1999 
             to each of the Bank Credit Agreements, the term loans were 
             converted into additional revolving credit loans. At March 31, 
             1999, the aggregate commitments under the Bank Credit Agreements 
             were approximately $322,800. The Bank Credit Agreements are non- 
             recourse to Mediacom and have no cross-default provisions relating 
             directly to each other. The reducing revolving credit lines under 
             the Bank Credit Agreements make available a maximum commitment 
             amount for a period of up to eight and one-half years, which is 
             subject to quarterly reductions, beginning September 30, 1998, 
             ranging from 0.21% to 11.58% of the original commitment amount of 
             the reducing revolver. The Bank Credit Agreements require mandatory 
             reductions of the reducing revolver credit lines from excess cash 
             flow, as defined, beginning December 31, 1999. The Bank Credit 
             Agreements provide for interest at varying rates based upon various 
             borrowing options and the attainment of certain financial ratios, 
             and for commitment fees of 3/8% to 1/2% per annum on the unused 
             portion of available credit under the reducing revolver credit 
             lines. The average interest rate on outstanding debt under the Bank 
             Credit Agreements was 7.2% for the three months ended March 31, 
             1999 and December 31, 1998, after giving effect to the interest 
             rate swap agreements discussed below. 
 
             The Bank Credit Agreements require the Company to maintain 
             compliance with certain financial covenants including, but not 
             limited to, the leverage ratio, the interest coverage ratio, the 
             fixed charge coverage ratio and the pro forma debt service coverage 
             ratio, as defined therein. The Bank Credit Agreements also require 
             the Company to maintain compliance with other covenants including, 
             but not limited to, limitations on mergers and acquisitions, 
             consolidations and sales of certain assets, liens, the incurrence 
             of additional indebtedness, certain restrictive payments, and 
             certain transactions with affiliates. The Company was in compliance 
             with all covenants of its Bank Credit Agreements as of March 31, 
             1999. 
 
             The Bank Credit Agreements are secured by Mediacom's pledge of all 
             its ownership interests in the subsidiaries and a first priority 
             lien on all the tangible and intangible assets of the operating 
             subsidiaries, other than real property in the case of the Southeast 
             Credit Agreement. The indebtedness under the Bank Credit Agreements 
             is guaranteed by Mediacom on a limited recourse basis to the extent 
             of its ownership interests in the operating subsidiaries. At March 
             31, 1999, the Company had approximately $306,000 of unused bank 
             commitments under the Bank Credit Agreements, all of which could 
             have been borrowed by the operating subsidiaries for purposes of 
             distributing such borrowed proceeds to Mediacom under the most 
             restrictive covenants. 
 
             As of March 31, 1999, the Company had entered into interest rate 
             exchange agreements (the "Swaps") with various banks pursuant to 
             which the interest rate on $60,000 is fixed at a weighted average 
             swap rate of approximately 6.2%, plus the average applicable margin 
             over the Eurodollar Rate option under the Bank Credit Agreements. 
             Under the terms of the Swaps, which expire from 1999 through 2002, 
             the Company is exposed to credit loss in the event of 
             nonperformance by the other parties to the Swaps. However, the 
             Company does not anticipate nonperformance by the counterparties. 
             During the first quarter of 1999, the net proceeds from the 



             offering of the 7 7/8% Senior Notes, in the amount of 
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                         MEDIACOM LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
                  NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
                         (All dollar amounts in 000's) 
                                  (Unaudited) 
 
 
          approximately $121,900, were used to repay a substantial portion of 
          outstanding debt under the Bank Credit Agreements. As a result of this 
          repayment of floating rate bank debt, approximately $43,250 of the 
          $60,000 of Swaps outstanding as of March 31, 1999, no longer qualify 
          as hedge instruments. Accordingly, such Swaps have been marked to 
          market as of March 31, 1999, and carried on the balance sheet in other 
          liabilities at fair value. Approximately $755 has been recorded in the 
          consolidated statement of operations in other expense. 
 
     (d)  In connection with a certain acquisition completed in 1996, certain 
          subsidiaries of Mediacom issued to the seller an unsecured senior 
          subordinated note (the "Seller Note") in the amount of $2,800, with a 
          final maturity of June 28, 2006. Interest is deferred throughout the 
          term of the Seller Note and is payable at maturity or upon prepayment. 
          For the five-year period ending June 28, 2001, the annual interest 
          rate is 9.0%. After the initial five-year period, the annual interest 
          rate increases to 15.0%, with an interest clawback for the first five 
          years. After the initial seven-year period, the interest rate 
          increases to 18.0%, with an interest clawback for the first seven 
          years. There are no penalties associated with prepayment of this note. 
 
          The Seller Note agreement contains a debt incurrence covenant limiting 
          the ability of the Company to incur additional indebtedness under the 
          Western Credit Agreement. The Seller Note is subordinated and junior 
          in right of payment to all senior obligations of certain subsidiaries, 
          as defined in the Western Credit Agreement. 
 
    All debt outstanding as of March 31, 1999, matures after December 31, 2004. 
 
(4) Commitments and Contingencies 
 
         Pursuant to the Cable Television Consumer Protection and Competition 
Act of 1992, the Federal Communications Commission (the "FCC") adopted 
comprehensive regulations governing rates charged to subscribers for basic cable 
and cable programming services. The FCC's authority to regulate the rates 
charged for cable programming services expired on March 31, 1999. Basic cable 
rates must be set using a benchmark formula. Alternatively, a cable operator can 
attempt to establish higher rates through a cost-of-service showing. The FCC has 
also adopted regulations that permit qualifying small cable operators to justify 
their regulated rates using a simplified rate-setting methodology. This 
methodology almost always results in rates which exceed those produced by the 
cost-of-service rules applicable to larger cable television operators. 
Approximately 71% of the basic subscribers served by the Company's cable 
television systems are covered by such FCC rules. Once rates for basic cable 
service have been established pursuant to one of these methodologies, the rate 
level can subsequently be adjusted only to reflect changes in the number of 
regulated channels, inflation, and increases in certain external costs, such as 
franchise and other governmental fees, copyright and retransmission consent 
fees, taxes, programming costs and franchise-related obligations. FCC 
regulations also govern the rates which can be charged for the lease of customer 
premises equipment and for installation services. 
 
         As a result of such legislation and FCC regulations, the Company's 
basic cable service rates and its equipment and installation charges (the 
"Regulated Services") are subject to the jurisdiction of local franchising 
authorities. The Company believes that it has complied in all material respects 
with the rate regulation provisions of the federal law. However, the Company's 
rates for Regulated Services are subject to review by the appropriate franchise 
authority if it is certified by the FCC to regulate basic cable service rates. 
If, as a result of the review process, the Company cannot substantiate the rates 
charged by its cable television systems for Regulated Services, the Company 
could be required to reduce its rates for Regulated Services to the appropriate 
level and refund the excess portion of rates received for up to one year prior 
to the implementation of any increase in rates for Regulated Services. 
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                         MEDIACOM LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
                  NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
                         (All dollar amounts in 000's) 
                                  (Unaudited) 
 
 
         The Company's agreements with franchise authorities require the payment 
of fees of up to 5% of annual system revenues. Such franchises are generally 
nonexclusive and are granted by local governmental authorities for a specified 
term of years, generally for periods of up to fifteen years. 
 
         On April 29, 1999, a bank issued two irrevocable letters of credit in 
the aggregate amount of $30,000 in favor of the seller of the Triax Systems 
(defined below) to secure the Company's performance under the related definitive 
agreement. 
 
(5)  FASB 131 - Disclosure about Segments of an Enterprise and Related 
     Information 
 
         During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 1998, the Company adopted 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 131, "Disclosure about 
Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information". This statement requires the 
Company to report segment financial information consistent with the 
presentations made to the Company's management for decision-making purposes. All 
revenues of the Company are derived solely from cable television operations and 
related activities. The decision making of the Company's management is based 
primarily on the impact of capital and operational resource allocations on the 
Company's consolidated system cash flow (defined as operating income before 
management fee expense, and depreciation and amortization). When allocating such 
resources to the cable television systems, the Company's management evaluates 
such factors as the bandwidth capacity and other cable plant characteristics, 
the offered programming services, and the rate structure. For the three months 
ended March 31, 1999 and 1998, the Company's consolidated system cash flow was 
approximately $16,974, and $10,818, respectively. 
 
(6)  Subsequent Events 
 
         On April 29, 1999, the Company entered into a definitive agreement to 
acquire the cable television systems owned by Triax Midwest Associates, L.P. 
(the "Triax Systems") for a purchase price of $740,000. The Triax Systems serve 
approximately 342,000 basic subscribers in Arizona, Illinois, Indiana, Iowa, 
Michigan, Minnesota and Wisconsin. Closing is expected in the fourth quarter of 
1999 and is subject to regulatory and other customary approvals. 
 
         The Company is regularly presented with opportunities to acquire cable 
television systems that are evaluated on the basis of the Company's acquisition 
strategy. Although the Company presently does not have any definitive agreements 
to acquire or sell any of its cable television systems, other than the 
definitive agreement to acquire the Triax Systems, it is negotiating with 
prospective sellers to acquire additional cable television systems. These 
acquisitions are subject to the negotiation and completion of definitive 
documentation, which will include customary representations and warranties and 
will be subject to a number of closing conditions. No assurance can be given 
that such definitive documents will be entered into or that, if entered into, 
the acquisitions will be consummated. 
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                         MEDIACOM CAPITAL CORPORATION 
                           
                                 BALANCE SHEETS 
  
  
                        
                                                                       March 31,         December 31, 
                                                                         1999               1998 
                                                                    --------------     -------------- 
                           ASSETS                                     (Unaudited)    
                                                                                   
Note receivable - from affiliate for issuance of common stock           $ 100               $ 100 
                                                                        ------              ------      
                                                                                                  
                       Total assets                                     $ 100               $ 100 
                                                                        ======              ======      
                                                                                                  
                LIABILITIES AND OWNER'S EQUITY                                                    
                                                                                                  
Owner's equity                                                                                    
                                                                                                  
        Common stock, par value $0.10;200 shares authorized;            $  10               $  10 
        100 shares issued and outstanding                                  90                  90 
                                                                        ------              ------      
        Additional paid-in capital                                                         
                                                                                           
                                                                                           
                       Total owner's equity                             $ 100               $ 100 
                                                                        ------              ------      
                                                                                           
                       Total liabilities and owner's equity             $ 100               $ 100 
                                                                        ======              ======      
  
                  See accompanying note to the balance sheets 
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                          MEDIACOM CAPITAL CORPORATION 
 
                          NOTE TO THE BALANCE SHEETS 
                                 March 31, 1999 
                         (All dollar amounts in 000's) 
                                  (Unaudited) 
                                         
 
 
(1)  Organization 
 
         Mediacom Capital Corporation ("Mediacom Capital"), a New York 
corporation, is a wholly-owned by Mediacom LLC ("Mediacom"), was organized on 
March 9, 1998 for the sole purpose of acting as co-issuer with Mediacom of 
$200,000 aggregate principal amount of the 8f1/2% senior notes due April 15, 
2008. Interest on the 8 1/2% senior notes is payable semi-annually on April 15 
and October 15 of each year. Mediacom Capital does not conduct operations of its 
own. 
 
         On February 26, 1999, Mediacom and Mediacom Capital jointly issued 
$125,000 aggregate principal amount of 7 7/8% senior notes due on February 15, 
2011. The net proceeds from this offering of approximately $121,900 were used to 
repay a substantial portion of outstanding bank debt under the bank credit 
facilities of Mediacom's operating subsidiaries. Interest on the 7 7/8% senior 
notes is payable semi-annually on February 15 and August 15 of each year, 
commencing on August 15, 1999. 
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ITEM 2.    MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND 
           RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 
 
Introduction 
 
         The following discussion of the financial condition and results of 
operations of the Company, the description of the Company's business as well as 
other sections of this Form 10-Q contain certain forward-looking statements. The 
Company's actual results could differ materially from those discussed herein and 
its current business plans could be altered in response to market conditions and 
other factors beyond the Company's control. Important factors that could cause 
or contribute to such differences or changes include those discussed under "Risk 
Factors" in the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-4, as amended. 
 
         EBITDA represents operating income (loss) before depreciation and 
amortization. EBITDA is not intended to be a performance measure that should be 
regarded as an alternative either to operating income or net income as an 
indicator of operating performance, or to the statement of cash flows as a 
measure of liquidity, as determined in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. EBITDA is included herein because the Company believes 
that EBITDA is a meaningful measure of performance as it is commonly used by the 
cable television industry and by the investment community to analyze and compare 
cable television companies on the basis of operating performance, leverage and 
liquidity. In addition, the primary debt instruments of the Company contain 
certain covenants, compliance with which is measured by computations similar to 
determining EBITDA. The Company's definition of EBITDA may not be identical to 
similarly titled measures reported by other companies. 
 
         Mediacom was founded in July 1995 principally to acquire, operate and 
develop cable television systems in selected non-metropolitan markets of the 
United States. The Company's business strategy is to: (i) acquire 
underperforming and undervalued cable television systems primarily in non- 
metropolitan markets, as well as related telecommunications businesses; (ii) 
invest in the development of a state-of-the-art technological platform for 
delivery of broadband video and other services to its customers; (iii) provide 
superior customer service; and (iv) deploy a flexible financing strategy to 
complement the Company's growth objectives and operating plans. The Company 
commenced operations in March 1996 with the acquisition of its first cable 
television system. As of March 31, 1999, the Company had completed nine 
acquisitions of cable television systems that on such date passed approximately 
520,000 homes and served approximately 355,000 basic subscribers. All 
acquisitions have been accounted for under the purchase method of accounting 
and, therefore, the Company's historical results of operations include the 
results of operations for each acquired system subsequent to its respective 
acquisition date. 
 
Results of Operations 
 
         The following historical information includes the results of operations 
of the Clearlake System (acquired on January 9, 1998), the Cablevision Systems 
(acquired on January 23, 1998), and the Caruthersville System (acquired on 
October 1, 1998) (collectively, the "Acquired Systems") only for that portion of 
the respective period that such cable television systems were owned by the 
Company. See Note 2 to the Company's consolidated financial statements for a 
detailed description of the Company's acquisitions in 1998. 
 
         The Clearlake System and the Cablevision Systems comprise a significant 
portion of the Company's basic subscribers. At March 31, 1999, these systems 
served approximately 286,100 basic subscribers, representing 80.6% of the 
approximately 355,000 basic subscribers served by the Company as of such date. 
Accordingly, the Company's purchase of the Clearlake System and the Cablevision 
Systems have resulted in substantial increases in the revenues, operating 
expenses, operating loss, net loss and EBITDA from the date of their respective 
acquisitions in the first quarter of 1998. Consequently, the Company believes 
that any comparison of its results of operations between the periods in 1999 and 
1998 are not indicative of the Company's results of operations in the future. 
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         Revenues increased to approximately $36.0 million for the three months 
ended March 31, 1999, from approximately $25.9 million for the corresponding 
period of 1998 due to: (i) the inclusion of the results of operations of the 
Acquired Systems for the full three month period in 1999; (ii) an increase in 
the average monthly basic service rate of $3.08 per basic subscriber; and (iii) 
internal basic subscriber growth of 2.2% (excluding acquisitions completed after 
March 31, 1998). Average monthly revenue per basic subscriber increased to 
approximately $33.73 for the three months ended March 31, 1999, from 
approximately $30.56 for the corresponding period of 1998. On a pro forma basis, 
assuming the Acquired Systems were owned and operated by the Company as of 
January 1, 1998, for the three months ended March 31, 1999, revenues increased 
by 12.3% over the comparable period in 1998. At March 31, 1999, the Company 
served approximately 355,000 basic subscribers compared to approximately 343,700 
basic subscribers at March 31, 1998. 
 
         Service costs increased to approximately $11.8 million for the three 
months ended March 31, 1999, from approximately $9.8 million for the 
corresponding period of 1998. Substantially all of this increase was due to the 
inclusion of the results of operations of the Acquired Systems for the full 
three month period in 1999. Of the service costs for the three months ended 
March 31, 1999, approximately 73.5% were attributable to programming and 
copyright costs, 10.9% to technical personnel costs, and 15.6% to plant 
operating costs. Of the service costs for the corresponding period of 1998, 
approximately 74.5% were attributable to programming and copyright costs, 12.0% 
to technical personnel costs, and 13.5% to plant operating costs. 
 
         Selling, general and administrative ("SGA") expenses increased to 
approximately $7.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 1999, from 
approximately $5.3 million for the corresponding period of 1998. Substantially 
all of this increase was due to the inclusion of the results of operations of 
the Acquired Systems for the full three month period in 1999. Of the SGA 
expenses for the three months ended March 31, 1999, approximately 28.7% were 
attributed to customer service and administrative personnel costs, 22.3% to 
franchise fees, property taxes and other fees, 11.1% to customer billing 
expenses, and 37.9% to marketing, advertising sales and office administration 
expenses. Of the SGA expenses for the corresponding period of 1998, 
approximately 28.5% were attributable to customer service and administrative 
personnel costs, 23.3% to franchise fees, property taxes and other fees, 12.4% 
to customer billing expenses, and 35.8% to marketing, advertising sales and 
office administration expenses. 
 
         Management fee expense increased to approximately $1.7 million for the 
three months ended March 31, 1999, from approximately $1.2 million for the 
corresponding period of 1998. Such increase was due to the higher revenues 
generated in the 1999 period. In accordance with separate management agreements 
with each of the Company's subsidiaries, Mediacom Management Corporation 
("Mediacom Management"), a Delaware corporation, earns fees for management 
services performed for the Company. Under such agreements, Mediacom Management 
is entitled to receive management fees ranging from 4.0% to 5.0% of the annual 
gross revenues of the Company. 
 
         Depreciation and amortization expense increased to approximately $20.4 
million for the three months ended March 31, 1999, from approximately $11.2 
million for the corresponding period of 1998. This increase was substantially 
due to the inclusion of depreciation and amortization expense of the Acquired 
Systems for the full three month period in 1999, as well as depreciation of 
capital additions to property, plant and equipment in the 1999 period. 
 
         Due to the factors described above, the Company generated an operating 
loss of approximately $5.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 1999, 
compared to an operating loss of approximately $1.6 million for the 
corresponding period of 1998. 
 
         Interest expense, net, increased to approximately $6.4 million for the 
three months ended March 31, 1999, from approximately $5.0 million for the 
corresponding period of 1998. This increase was substantially due to higher 
average debt outstanding during the 1999 period as a result of the debt incurred 
in connection with the Acquired Systems. Other expenses decreased to 
approximately $1.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 1999, from 
approximately $3.3 million for the corresponding period of 1998. This decrease 
was principally due to acquisition fees incurred in the 1998 period in 
connection with the acquisition of the Clearlake System and Cablevision Systems. 
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         Due to the factors described above, the Company generated a net loss of 
approximately $12.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 1999, compared 
to a net loss of approximately $10.0 million for the corresponding period of 
1998. 
 
         EBITDA increased to approximately $15.3 million for the three months 
ended March 31, 1999, from approximately $9.6 million for the corresponding 
period of 1998. This increase was substantially due to the inclusion of the 
results of operations of the Acquired Systems for the full three month period. 
EBITDA as a percentage of revenues increased to 42.5% for the three months ended 
March 31, 1999, from 37.1% for the corresponding period of 1998. On a pro forma 
basis, assuming the Acquired Systems were owned and operated by the Company as 
of January 1, 1998, for the three months ended March 31, 1999, EBITDA increased 
by 24.1% over the comparable period in 1998. 
 
Liquidity and Capital Resources 
 
         The cable television business is a capital-intensive business that 
generally requires financing for the upgrade, expansion and maintenance of the 
technical infrastructure. In addition, the Company has pursued, and continues to 
pursue, a business strategy that includes selective acquisitions. The Company 
has funded its working capital requirements, capital expenditures and 
acquisitions through a combination of internally generated funds, long-term 
borrowings and equity contributions. The Company intends to continue to finance 
such expenditures through these same sources. 
 
         During the third quarter of 1998, the Company modified its previously 
disclosed five-year capital improvement program by accelerating its planned 
completion date to June 30, 2000. This accelerated program will enable the 
Company to deploy digital cable television technology and cable modem service 
earlier and more widespread than previously planned, beginning in 1999. Upon 
completion of the capital improvement program in June 30, 2000, the Company 
anticipates that over 85% of its customer base will be served by cable 
television systems with 550-750MHz bandwidth capacity. 
 
         As a result of these new strategic initiatives, total capital 
expenditures (other than those related to acquisitions) are budgeted at $63.0 
million for 1999, of which $15.9 million was spent during the three months ended 
March 31, 1999. The Company intends to utilize cash generated from operations 
and its available unused credit commitments under its subsidiary credit 
facilities, as described below, to fund the foregoing capital expenditures. 
 
         From the Company's commencement of operations in March 1996 through 
December 31, 1997, the Company invested approximately $97.8 million (before 
closing costs) to acquire cable television systems serving approximately 64,700 
basic subscribers as of March 31, 1999.  In 1998, the Company invested 
approximately $334.6 million (before closing costs) to acquire cable television 
systems serving approximately 290,300 basic subscribers as of March 31, 1999. 
In the aggregate, the Company has invested approximately $432.4 million (before 
closing costs) to acquire its cable television systems serving approximately 
355,000 as of March 31, 1999. 
 
         Mediacom is a limited liability company that serves as the holding 
company for its various subsidiaries, each of which is also a limited liability 
company. The Company's financing strategy is to raise equity from its members 
and issue public long-term debt at the holding company level, while utilizing 
its subsidiaries to access debt capital, principally in the commercial bank 
market, through two stand-alone borrowing groups. The Company believes that this 
financing strategy is beneficial because it broadens the Company's access to 
various debt markets, enhances its flexibility in managing the Company's capital 
structure, reduces the overall cost of debt capital, and permits the Company to 
maintain a substantial liquidity position in the form of unused and available 
bank credit commitments. 
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         Financings of the subsidiaries are currently effected through two 
stand-alone borrowing groups, each with separate lending groups. The credit 
arrangements of these borrowing groups are non-recourse to Mediacom, have no 
cross-default provisions relating directly to each other, have different 
revolving credit periods and contain separately negotiated covenants tailored 
for each borrowing group. These credit arrangements permit the subsidiaries, 
subject to covenant restrictions, to make distributions to Mediacom. As of March 
31, 1999, the Company was in compliance with all of the financial covenants and 
other covenants as provided in its bank credit agreements. 
 
         As of March 31, 1999, in order to finance its working capital 
requirements, capital expenditures and acquisitions, and to provide liquidity 
for future capital requirements, the Company had completed the following 
financing arrangements: (i) a $100.0 million bank credit agreement; (ii) a 
$225.0 million bank credit agreement; (iii) a seller note in the original 
principal amount of $2.8 million issued in connection with the acquisition of a 
cable television system; (iv) $200.0 million of 8 1/2% senior notes; (v) $125.0 
million of 7 7/8% senior notes (see below); and (vi) $125.0 million of equity 
capital invested in Mediacom by the members of Mediacom. See Note 3 to the 
Company's consolidated financial statements. 
 
         On February 26, 1999, Mediacom and Mediacom Capital jointly issued 
$125.0 million aggregate principal amount of 7 7/8% senior notes due on February 
15, 2011. The net proceeds from this offering of approximately $121.9 million 
were used to repay a substantial portion of outstanding bank debt under the 
Company's bank credit agreements. Interest on the 7 7/8% senior notes is payable 
semi-annually on February 15 and August 15 of each year, commencing on August 
15, 1999. 
 
         As of March 31, 1999, the Company had entered into interest rate swap 
agreements to hedge a notional amount of $60.0 million of borrowings under the 
Company's bank credit agreements, which expire from 1999 through 2002. For the 
three months ended March 31, 1999, the weighted average interest rate on all 
indebtedness outstanding under the Company's bank credit agreements was 
approximately 6.5% before giving effect to the aforementioned interest rate swap 
agreements, and approximately 7.2% after giving effect to said interest rate 
swap agreements. 
 
         As a result of the financing transactions described above, as of March 
31, 1999, the Company had approximately $306.0 million of unused bank credit 
commitments, all of which could have been borrowed and distributed to Mediacom 
under the most restrictive covenants in the bank credit agreements. In addition 
to unused bank credit commitments and borrowing availability thereunder, debt 
leverage and interest coverage ratios are commonly used in the cable television 
industry to measure liquidity and financial condition. For the three month 
period ended March 31, 1999, the debt leverage ratio (defined as total debt at 
the end of the period divided by annualized EBITDA for the period) was 5.64x and 
the interest coverage ratio (defined as EBITDA divided by interest expense, net, 
for the period) was 2.40x. 
 
         On April 29, 1999, the Company entered into a definitive agreement to 
acquire the cable television systems owned by Triax Midwest Associates, L.P. 
(the "Triax Systems") for a purchase price of $740,000.  The Triax Systems serve 
approximately 342,000 basic subscribers in Arizona, Illinois, Indiana, Iowa, 
Michigan, Minnesota and Wisconsin. Closing is expected in the fourth quarter of 
1999 and is subject to regulatory and other customary approvals. 
 
        The Company is regularly presented with opportunities to acquire cable 
television systems that are evaluated on the basis of the Company's acquisition 
strategy.  Although the Company presently does not have any definitive 
agreements to acquire or sell any of its cable television systems, other than 
the definitive agreement to acquire the Triax Systems, it is negotiating with 
prospective sellers to acquire additional cable television systems.  These 
acquisitions are subject to the negotiation and completion of definitive 
documentation, which will include customary representations and warranties and 
will be subject to a number of closing conditions.  No assurance can be given 
that such definitive documents will be entered into or that, if entered into, 
the acquisitions will be consummated. 
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         On April 29, 1999, a bank issued two irrevocable letters of credit in 
the aggregate amount of $30,000 in favor of the seller of the Triax Systems to 
secure the Company's performance under the related definitive agreement. 
 
         Although the Company has not generated earnings sufficient to cover 
fixed charges, the Company has generated cash and obtained financing sufficient 
to meet its debt service, working capital, capital expenditure and acquisition 
requirements. The Company expects that it will continue to be able to generate 
funds and obtain financing sufficient to service its obligations and to complete 
its pending acquisitions. There can be no assurance that the Company will be 
able to refinance its indebtedness or obtain new financing in the future or, if 
the Company were able to do so, that the terms would be favorable to the 
Company. 
 
Recent Accounting Pronouncements 
 
         In 1998, Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, 
"Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, " ("SFAS 133") 
and Statement of Position 98-5, "Reporting on the Costs of start up Activities" 
("SOP 98-5") were issued. SFAS 133 establishes accounting and reporting 
standards requiring that every derivative instrument be recorded in the balance 
sheet as either an asset or liability measured at its fair value. The Company 
will adopt SFAS 133 in fiscal 2000, but has not quantified the impact or not yet 
determined the timing or method of the adoption. SOP 98-5 provides guidance on 
accounting for the costs of start-up activities, which include preopening costs, 
preoperating costs, organization costs, and start-up costs. The Company will 
adopt SOP 98-5 in fiscal 1999, but does not expect any impact to the financial 
statements. 
 
Inflation and Changing Prices 
 
         The Company's costs and expenses are subject to inflation and price 
fluctuations. However, because changes in costs are generally passed through to 
subscribers, such changes are not expected to have a material effect on the 
Company's results of operations. 
 
Year 2000 
 
         The Company has formed a Year 2000 project management team responsible 
for overseeing, coordinating and reporting on the Year 2000 remediation efforts. 
The Company has implemented a company-wide effort to assess and remediate its 
computer systems, related software and equipment to ensure such systems, 
software and equipment recognize, process and store information in the year 2000 
and thereafter. Such Year 2000 remediation efforts include an assessment of the 
most critical systems, such as customer service and billing systems, headend 
facilities, business support operations, and other equipment and facilities. The 
Company is also verifying the Year 2000 readiness of its significant suppliers 
and vendors. 
 
         The following is the status of the Year 2000 project as of March 31, 
1999: assessment was complete; remediation was underway with the final 
completion expected by June 1999; and testing and implementation are in the 
early stages, with final completion expected by September 1999. 
 
         The project management team has also identified the Company's most 
critical supplier/vendor relationships and has instituted a verification process 
to determine the vendors' Year 2000 readiness. Such verification includes 
reviewing vendors' test and other data and engaging in regular communications 
with vendors' Year 2000 teams. The Company is currently testing to validate the 
Year 2000 compliance of certain critical products and services. 
 
         The completion dates set fourth above are based on current 
expectations. However, due to the uncertainties inherent in Year 2000 
remediation, no assurances can be given as to whether such projects will be 
completed on such dates. 
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ITEM  3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 
 
        In the normal course of business, the Company uses interest rate swap 
agreements in order to fix the interest rate for the duration of the contract as 
a hedge against interest rate volatility.  As of March 31, 1999, the Company had 
interest rate exchange agreements (the "Swaps") with various banks pursuant to 
which the interest rate on $60.0 million is fixed at a weighted average swap 
rate of approximately 6.2%, plus the average applicable margin over the 
Eurodollar Rate option under the Company's bank credit facilities.  Under the 
terms of the Swaps, which expire from 1999 through 2002, the Company is exposed 
to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other parties to the Swaps. 
However, the Company does not anticipate nonperformance by the counterparties. 
During the first quarter, the net proceeds from the offering of the 7 7/8% 
senior notes, in the amount of approximately $121.9 million, were used to repay 
a substantial portion of outstanding debt under the bank credit agreements.  As 
a result of the repayment of floating rate bank debt, approximately $43.2 
million of the $60.0 million of Swaps outstanding as of March 31, 1999, no 
longer qualify as hedge instruments.  Accordingly, such Swaps have been marked 
to market as of March 31, 1999, and carried on the balance sheet in other 
liabilities at fair value.  Approximately $755,000 has been recorded in the 
consolidated statement of operations in other expense. 
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                                    PART II 
                                    ------- 
                                         
ITEM 6. 
 
(a)  Exhibits 
 
 
Exhibit 
- ------- 
Number                     Exhibit Descriptions 
- ------                     -------------------- 
 
 2.9     Asset Purchase Agreement dated April 29, 1999 between Mediacom LLC and 
         Triax Midwest Associates, L.P. 
 
 27.1    Financial Data Schedule 
 
(b)   Reports on Form 8-K 
 
      None. 
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  Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the 
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the 
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 
 
 
                                   MEDIACOM LLC 
 
  
May 14, 1999                       By: /s/ Mark E. Stephan 
                                       ------------------------------- 
                                       Mark E. Stephan 
                                        Senior Vice President, 
                                        Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer 
                                        And Principal Financial Officer 
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undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 
 
 
                                        MEDIACOM CAPITAL CORPORATION 
 
  
May 14, 1999                            By:  /s/ Mark E. Stephan 
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                           ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
 
     This Asset Purchase Agreement is made and entered into this 29th  day of 
April, 1999, by and between, Triax Midwest Associates, L.P., a Missouri limited 
partnership ("Seller"), and Mediacom LLC, a New York limited liability company 
("Buyer"). 
 
                                  WITNESSETH 
 
     WHEREAS, Seller owns and operates cable television systems serving the 
communities listed on Annex I hereto (the "Systems"); and 
                      -------                             
 
     WHEREAS, Seller desires to sell and Buyer desires to buy the Systems and 
all of the assets used or held for use in the operation of the Systems, except 
for the Excluded Assets (collectively, "Seller's Business"). 
 
     NOW THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
                                   ARTICLE I 
 
                          Purchase and Sale of Assets 
                          --------------------------- 
 
     1.1  Assets Subject to Agreement.  Seller shall sell, assign, transfer, 
          ---------------------------                                          
convey and deliver to Buyer, and Buyer shall purchase, assume and acquire from 
Seller, all of Seller's right, title and interest in and to the following assets 
(the "Transferred Assets") as the same shall exist on the Closing Date, free and 
clear of any Liens, except for Permitted Liens; provided that the Transferred 
Assets shall not include any of the assets described in Section 1.2 hereof : 
 
          (a) Accounts Receivable.  All of Seller's subscriber, tower rent and 
              -------------------                                              
     advertising accounts receivable related to the Systems existing and 
     uncollected as of the Closing (the "Accounts Receivable"). 
 
          (b) Inventory.  All of Seller's operating inventory, materials, 
              ---------                                                   
     supplies and other inventories of every kind and nature, including all 
     uninstalled converters and other uninstalled subscriber devices, used or 
     held for use by Seller in its operation of the Systems. 
 
          (c) Real Estate.  The real estate, including the land, buildings and 
              -----------                                                      
     other fixtures and improvements thereon used or held for use by Seller in 
     its operation of the Systems (the "Real Estate"), including but not limited 
     to the real estate owned by Seller (the "Owned Real Estate"), the real 
     estate leased by Seller (the "Leased Real Estate"), and Seller's easements, 
     rights of way and other interests in real property, all as described on 
                                                                             
     Schedule 4.6(b) and identified thereon as owned or leased. 
     ---------------                                            
 
          (d) Equipment.  All equipment, machinery and other tangible personal 
              ---------                                                        
     property of Seller that is used or held for use by Seller in the operation 
     of the Systems whether or not located at the Systems (the "Equipment"), 
     including:  headend equipment, including  
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     towers, origination equipment, transmission equipment and electronic 
     equipment; computers; reception sites; distribution equipment, including 
     trunk, distribution and drop lines, amplifiers, power supplies, conduits, 
     vaults, pedestals, grounding and pole hardware; customer devices, including 
     converters, encoders, behind television transformers and taps; installer 
     and technician equipment, including vehicles, tools and test equipment; 
     furniture and furnishings; telephone equipment; and CableData terminals. 
 
          (e) Franchises, Permits and Licenses.  Seller's (i) cable television 
              --------------------------------                                 
     franchises and similar grants of Governmental Authorities related to the 
     Systems, including any supplemental agreements, settlement agreements and 
     other similar agreements relating to the cable television franchises (the 
     "Franchises") all as set forth on Schedule 4.13(a); (ii) FCC permits, 
                                       ----------------                    
     licenses and authorizations related to the Systems (the "FCC Licenses"), 
     all as set forth on Schedule 4.14(a); (iii) FAA permits, licenses and 
                         ----------------                                  
     authorizations related to the Systems (the "FAA Licenses"), all as set 
     forth on Schedule 4.20; (iv) state and county highway crossing permits 
              -------------                                                 
     related to the Systems, railroad crossing permits related to the Systems, 
     and any and all other authorizations, permits, licenses, registrations, 
     variances and similar rights obtained from any Governmental Authority or 
     other third party which authorize or are required in connection with the 
     operation of the Systems and Seller's Business, to the extent assignable 
     (the "Other Permits"), all as set forth on Schedule 4.13(b). 
                                                ----------------  
 
          (f) Contracts.  Seller's Real Estate leases related to the Systems 
              ---------                                                      
     (the "Real Estate Leases"); Seller's equipment leases related to the 
     Systems (the "Equipment Leases"); Seller's pole attachment agreements 
     related to the Systems, to the extent assignable (the "Pole Attachment 
     Agreements"); Seller's programming agreements related to the Systems, to 
     the extent designated on Schedule 4.10(b) (the "Programming Agreements"); 
                              ----------------                                 
     Seller's retransmission consent agreements related to the Systems (the 
     "Retransmission Agreements"); Seller's agreements with advertisers entered 
     into in the ordinary course of business (the "Advertising Agreements"); 
     Seller's vehicle leases (the "Vehicle Leases"); Seller's agreements with 
     Customers for cable television service as of the Closing Date (the 
     "Customer Agreements"); Seller's unfilled service orders for services to 
     Customers or prospective Customers (the "Service Orders"); and all other 
     agreements to which Seller is a party and used or held for use by Seller in 
     its operation of the Systems (the "Other Contracts").  The Real Estate 
     Leases, Equipment Leases, Pole Attachment Agreements, Programming 
     Agreements, Retransmission Agreements, Advertising Agreements, Vehicle 
     Leases and Other Contracts are set forth on Schedule 4.10(b). 
                                                 ----------------  
 
          (g) Intangible Property.  Seller's Customer lists and Customer 
              -------------------                                        
     records; construction and engineering maps and data, schematics and 
     blueprints pertaining to the Systems; books and financial records 
     pertaining to the operation of the Systems; correspondence and documents 
     pertaining to Customers, Governmental Authorities and other third parties 
     relevant to Seller's ongoing relationships with Customers, Governmental 
     Authorities and other third parties; prepaid expenses to the extent such 
     prepaid expenses result in an adjustment to the Purchase Price under 
     Section 3.3 hereof,  
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     patents, copyrights, goodwill and all other general intangibles owned, used 
     or held for use by Seller in connection with the Systems and Seller's 
     Business. 
 
          (h) Launch Incentive Payments.  Launch incentive payments related to 
              -------------------------                                        
     the Systems received by Seller from programmers for services to be provided 
     after the Closing Date, including those set forth on Schedule 1.1(h) (the 
                                                          ---------------      
     "Launch Incentive Payments"). 
 
          (i) Books and Records.  Seller's books and records relating to the 
              -----------------                                              
     operation of the Systems and Seller's Business. 
 
     1.2  Excluded Assets.  Notwithstanding anything contained in Section 1.1 
          ---------------                                                       
hereof to the contrary, the Transferred Assets will not include any of the 
following (the "Excluded Assets"): 
 
          (a) Cash.  Cash and cash equivalents, certificates of deposit, bank or 
              ----                                                               
     savings and loan accounts, U.S. government securities, any other marketable 
     securities of any kind or nature or notes receivable ("Cash"). 
 
          (b) Claims.  Claims of Seller against third parties, other than the 
              ------                                                          
     Accounts Receivable as provided in Section 1.1(a). 
 
          (c) Bonds and Insurance.  Bonds and insurance policies furnished by 
              -------------------                                             
     Seller pursuant to any Franchise, Pole Attachment Agreement or other 
     authorization or agreement. 
 
          (d) Trademarks, etc.  Seller's trademarks, trade names, service marks, 
              ---------------                                                    
     service names and similar proprietary rights, including but not limited to 
     the names "Triax" and "Tri-Speed"; provided that Buyer shall have the right 
     to use the above described proprietary rights, including the names "Triax" 
     and "Tri-Speed," in connection with the transfer of the operation of the 
     Systems from Seller to Buyer for one (1) year following the Closing Date. 
 
          (e) Tax Refunds.  Rights to any tax refunds for tax periods ending 
              -----------                                                    
     prior to the Closing Date. 
 
          (f) Partnership Records.  Seller's books and records and other 
              -------------------                                        
     agreements and documents related to matters among any of Seller's partners 
     and/or their affiliates, provided that Seller shall permit Buyer to have 
     access thereto to the extent and in the manner contemplated by this 
     Agreement. 
 
          (g) Programming Agreements.  Seller's programming agreements related 
              ----------------------                                           
     to the Systems, other than those assumed pursuant to Section 1.1(f) hereof. 
 
          (h) Other.  All other items described in Schedule 1.2. 
              -----                                ------------  
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                                   ARTICLE II 
 
                           Assumption of Liabilities 
                           ------------------------- 
 
     2.1  Assumption of Liabilities.  Buyer shall assume, pay, perform and 
          -------------------------                                          
discharge, and forever indemnify and hold Seller, Seller's partners and all of 
their respective officers, directors, affiliates, partners and members harmless 
against and from the following liabilities and obligations of Seller (the 
"Assumed Liabilities"): 
 
          (a) Assumed Contracts.  All of Seller's liabilities and obligations 
              -----------------                                               
     under the Assumed Contracts to be satisfied or performed on or after the 
     Closing Date. 
 
          (b) Current and Accrued Liabilities.  All of Seller's accounts payable 
              -------------------------------                                    
     relating to the operation of the Systems remaining unpaid on the Closing 
     Date and accrued current liabilities as of the Closing Date to the extent 
     such accounts payable and current accrued liabilities result in an 
     adjustment to the Purchase Price under Section 3.3(c) hereof. 
 
          (c) Operating Liabilities.  All liabilities, obligations, costs and 
              ---------------------                                           
     expenses with respect to claims arising in any way with respect to the 
     operation of the Systems on or after the Closing Date, including, without 
     limitation, any and all franchise fees, pole attachment rentals, copyright 
     fees, federal, state or local income, sales, use, excise, property or other 
     taxes or tort claims arising out of or attributable to the operation of the 
     Systems on or after the Closing Date. 
 
     2.2  No Assumption of Other Liabilities.  Except for the Assumed 
          ----------------------------------                            
Liabilities, Buyer shall not assume any liabilities or obligations of Seller. 
 
                                  ARTICLE III 
 
                                 Purchase Price 
                                 -------------- 
 
     3.1  Purchase Price.  The purchase price for the Transferred Assets (the 
          --------------                                                        
"Purchase Price") shall be $740,000,000, subject to the adjustments set forth in 
Section 3.3 hereof. 
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     3.2  Payment of Purchase Price.  Buyer shall pay the Purchase Price to 
          -------------------------                                           
Seller as follows: 
 
          (a) $30,000,000 (the "Purchase Price Escrow Deposit") will be paid 
     immediately after the execution and delivery of this Agreement, at Buyer's 
     election, by the delivery of two irrevocable letters of credit, in the 
     amounts of $20,000,000 and $10,000,000, respectively, in form customary in 
     commercial transactions, to, or in cash by federal wire transfer to an 
     account designated by, an escrow agent to be selected by Buyer and Seller 
     (the "Purchase Price Deposit Escrow Agent") in accordance with the terms of 
     an escrow agreement among Buyer, Seller and the Purchase Price Deposit 
     Escrow Agent, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A (the 
                                                                ---------      
     "Purchase Price Deposit Escrow Agreement").  Upon Buyer delivering to 
     Seller an executed financing commitment letter, in form customary in the 
     cable television industry (the "Commitment Letter"), together with a 
     certification by an executive officer of Buyer that the Commitment Letter, 
     when combined with the Purchase Price Escrow Deposit and Other Funds 
     available to Buyer, is sufficient to satisfy the Purchase Price and related 
     closing costs (the "Certificate"), the Purchase Price Escrow Deposit will 
     be reduced to $20,000,000.  Buyer may at any time substitute a new 
     Commitment Letter for any Commitment Letter previously furnished.  In the 
     event of a reduction of the Purchase Price Escrow Deposit (i) if the 
     Purchase Price Escrow Deposit was made in cash, Seller and Buyer jointly 
     shall instruct the Purchase Price Deposit Escrow Agent to pay to Buyer by 
     federal wire transfer to an account designated by Buyer the amount of 
     $10,000,000, plus all interest or other earnings thereon; or (ii) if the 
     Purchase Price Escrow Deposit was made by the delivery of irrevocable 
     letters of credit, Seller and Buyer jointly shall instruct the Purchase 
     Price Deposit Escrow Agent to deliver the $10,000,000 letter of credit to 
     Buyer for cancellation.  Thereafter, Buyer shall deliver to Seller, within 
     five (5) business days following the end of each month prior to the Closing 
     Date, an additional Certificate.  If Buyer fails to deliver such 
     Certificate on a timely basis, Seller shall deliver written notice to Buyer 
     of such failure and Buyer shall deliver such Certificate within two (2) 
     business days of the delivery of such notice. If Buyer fails to deliver 
     such Certificate within two (2) business days of such notice, such failure 
     shall be deemed to be conclusive evidence that Buyer has insufficient funds 
     available to satisfy the amount of the Purchase Price and related costs. 
     If, at any time prior to Closing, any circumstance exists or event occurs 
     as a result of which the sum of available funds under the Commitment 
     Letter, the Purchase Price Escrow Deposit and the Other Funds are not 
     sufficient to satisfy the amount of the Purchase Price and related closing 
     costs, unless the insufficiency results from the withdrawal by Buyer's 
     lenders of the Commitment Letter as a result of a change in the United 
     States financial markets that has a material effect generally on the 
     ability to obtain debt or equity financing, Buyer shall, within five (5) 
     business days after the failure to deliver the Certificate or occurrence of 
     such circumstances or event, deposit with the Purchase Price Deposit Escrow 
     Agent the amount of $10,000,000 by the delivery of an irrevocable letter of 
     credit, in form customary in commercial transactions, to, or in cash by 
     federal wire transfer to an account designated by, the Purchase Price 
     Deposit Escrow  
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     Agent, and such letter of credit or funds, as the case may be, shall remain 
     subject to the terms of the Purchase Price Deposit Escrow Agreement until 
     the Closing or termination of this Agreement under Section 11.2 hereof. If 
     on the fifth (5th) business day such letter of credit or funds have not 
     been deposited with the Purchase Price Deposit Escrow Agent, then Buyer 
     shall be in material breach of this Agreement and Seller shall be entitled 
     to terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section 11.2 hereof and 
     receive the amount of $30,000,000, with interest and earnings thereon, as 
     set forth in Section 11.3 hereof; provided, however, that if Seller is 
     aware, and Buyer is not aware, of such failure, then Seller shall notify 
     Buyer of Buyer's failure to comply with the terms of this Section 3.2(a) 
     and Buyer shall thereafter be entitled to two (2) additional business days 
     in which to deposit such letter of credit or funds before Buyer is deemed 
     to be in breach under this Section 3.2(a). "Other Funds" means funds 
     available to Buyer for use in connection with the Closing (including 
     consolidated unused credit availability under the consolidated credit 
     facilities of Mediacom LLC and its affiliates and undrawn equity 
     commitments made by members of Mediacom LLC) the use of which has been 
     approved (if any such approval is required) by all requisite parties. At 
     the Closing, (x) if the Purchase Price Escrow Deposit was made by cash 
     payment, the principal balance thereof, plus all interest or other earnings 
     thereon, will be released to Seller and credited towards Buyer's payment of 
     the Purchase Price and (y) if the Purchase Price Escrow Deposit was made by 
     the delivery of one or more irrevocable letters of credit, such letters of 
     credit shall be released to Buyer for cancellation. 
 
          (b) $30,000,000 (the "Indemnity Escrow Deposit") will be paid on the 
     Closing Date, at Seller's election, by the delivery by Seller of one or 
     more irrevocable letters of credit, in form customary in commercial 
     transactions, to, or in cash by federal wire transfer to an account 
     designated by, an escrow agent to be selected by Seller and Buyer (the 
     "Indemnity Deposit Escrow Agent"), or in some combination thereof, which 
     will secure payment by Seller of any indemnity obligations to Buyer in 
     accordance with the terms of an escrow agreement between Buyer, Seller and 
     the Indemnity Deposit Escrow Agent, substantially in the form attached 
     hereto as Exhibit B (the "Indemnity Deposit Escrow Agreement"). 
               ---------                                             
 
          (c) The amount equal to the difference between (i) the Purchase Price 
     and (ii) (A) the principal balance of the Purchase Price Escrow Deposit, if 
     in cash, and all interest or other earnings thereon, released to Seller, 
     (B) the Indemnity Escrow Deposit, if in cash, and (C) the Retained 
     Franchise Price, if any, will be paid on the Closing Date by federal wire 
     transfer to an account designated in writing by Seller to Buyer at least 
     two business days prior to the Closing Date. 
 
          (d) The amount of the Retained Franchise Price, if any, will be paid 
     on the Closing Date by the delivery by Buyer of an irrevocable letter of 
     credit in form customary in commercial transactions to an escrow agent to 
     be selected by Seller and Buyer (the "Retained Franchise Price Escrow 
     Agent"), which will secure payment by Buyer of all or a portion of the 
     Retained Franchise Price in accordance with the terms of an escrow 
     agreement between Buyer, Seller and the Retained Franchise Price Escrow 
     Agent, in form  
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     and substance reasonably agreed upon by the parties (the "Retained 
     Franchise Price Escrow Agreement"). 
 
     3.3  Adjustments to Purchase Price.  The Purchase Price will be adjusted  
          ----------------------------- 
          as follows: 
 
          (a) In the event that the number of Equivalent Basic Subscribers for 
     the Systems (other than First Right Systems) on the Closing Date (exclusive 
     of any Acquisition Subscribers other than  Allocated Subscribers) is less 
     than the Subscriber Threshold, the Purchase Price shall be reduced by a 
     dollar amount equal to the product of (i) the positive remainder, if any, 
     of the Subscriber Threshold less the number of Equivalent Basic Subscribers 
     of the Systems (other than First Right Systems) at the Closing Date and 
     (ii) $2,167; provided, that in no event will the adjustments provided for 
     in this Section 3.3(a) exceed the amount of $20,000,000. 
 
          (b) The Purchase Price shall be increased by an amount equal to the 
     sum of (i) 100% of the face amount of the Accounts Receivable which have 
     been outstanding for no more than 30 days as of the Closing Date, (ii) 90% 
     of the face amount of Accounts Receivable which have been outstanding for 
     more than 30 days but no more than 60 days as of the Closing Date and (iii) 
     0% of the face amount of Accounts Receivable which have been outstanding 
     more than 60 days as of the Closing Date, determined as of the Cut-Off 
     Date, with respect to Customer receivables, and determined as of the last 
     day of the month as to which service was provided, with respect to 
     advertising receivables. 
 
          (c) The Purchase Price shall be increased for prepaid expenses 
     (excluding, however, prepaid expenses relating to any contracts or 
     agreements that will not be assumed by Buyer or relating to Excluded 
     Assets), and shall be reduced for accounts payable, accrued liabilities, 
     accrued expenses and prepaid income, all as determined in accordance with 
     GAAP, to reflect the principle that all income and expenses attributable to 
     the Systems for the period before 12:00 a.m. on the Closing Date are for 
     the account of Seller, and all income and expenses attributable to the 
     Systems for the period after 12:00 a.m. on the Closing Date are for the 
     account of Buyer.  The Purchase Price shall be reduced for accrued vacation 
     pay, not to exceed up to eighty (80) hours per employee for such of 
     Seller's employees who become employees of Buyer as of the Closing Date. 
     The Purchase Price shall be increased by the amount of any monies relating 
     to the Systems that are on deposit with third parties as security for 
     Seller's performance of the Assumed Contracts as of the Closing Date and 
     such deposits will be treated as Transferred Assets.  The Purchase Price 
     shall be decreased by the amount of any monies held by Seller as customer 
     deposits or prepayments, liability for which will be assumed by Buyer. 
 
          (d) A complete and correct copy of Seller's 1999 capital expenditures 
     budget, prepared in a manner consistent with Seller's customary practice 
     and in accordance with GAAP, is attached hereto as Schedule 3.3(d) (the 
                                                        ---------------      
     "Capital Expenditures Budget").  In the event Seller fails to make capital 
     expenditures during calendar year 1999, as determined by GAAP, in an amount 
     not less than (i) $43,464,194 or (ii) if the Closing occurs prior to 
     December 31, 1999, such lesser amount equal to the sum of budgeted amounts 
     for each  
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     month, or any portion thereof, on a cumulative basis through the date of 
     Closing (the "Capital Expenditures Amount"), and in a manner materially 
     consistent with the Capital Expenditures Budget, the Purchase Price shall 
     be reduced by an amount equal to the difference between the Capital 
     Expenditures Amount and the actual capital expenditures made by Seller 
     during calendar year 1999 prior to Closing. Schedule 3.3(d) sets 
                                                 ---------------      
     forth the capital expenditures associated with projects carried over from 
     1998 and included in the Capital Expenditures Budget.  In the event the 
     amount of actual capital expenditures for projects carried over from 1998 
     exceeds the corresponding amount set forth on Schedule 3.3(d), the Capital 
                                                   ---------------              
     Expenditures Amount shall be increased by the difference between the actual 
     capital expenditures and the corresponding amount set forth on Schedule 
                                                                    -------- 
     3.3(d). 
     ------  
 
          (e) The Purchase Price shall be increased to reflect the acquisition 
     by Seller after November 15, 1998 and prior to Closing of additional 
     systems (the "New Acquisitions") set forth on Schedule 3.3(e) hereof, 
                                                   ---------------         
     serving, in the aggregate, not more than 5,400 additional Equivalent Basic 
     Subscribers (the "Acquisition Subscribers"), in an amount equal to the sum 
     of (i) Seller's acquisition price (but not more than $2,167 per Acquisition 
     Subscriber) for each New Acquisition consummated prior to the Closing plus 
                                                                           ---- 
     (ii) 50% of the difference between $2,167 and the per subscriber purchase 
     price for each New Acquisition (if less than $2,167 per Acquisition 
     Subscriber), multiplied by the number of Acquisition Subscribers acquired 
                  ----------                                                   
     in such New Acquisition as of the date of acquisition thereof.  The per 
     subscriber purchase price for any New Acquisition shall be equal to the 
     total purchase price for such New Acquisition divided by the number of 
     Acquisition Subscribers purchased in connection with such New Acquisition. 
     Up to 2,200 Acquisition Subscribers acquired through New Acquisitions (the 
     "Allocated Subscribers") may be allocated toward the Subscriber Threshold, 
     solely to the extent that Seller has sold or traded, prior to the Closing, 
     an equivalent number of Equivalent Basic Subscribers held by Seller on the 
     date of this Agreement, in which event the Purchase Price shall not be 
     increased pursuant to this Section 3.3(e) with respect to such Allocated 
     Subscribers.  In the event Buyer shall give its consent to the sale or 
     trade by Seller, prior to Closing, of additional Equivalent Basic 
     Subscribers in excess of 2,200, then Seller shall be permitted prior to 
     Closing to consummate additional acquisitions, reasonably satisfactory to 
     Buyer, to replace the additional Equivalent Basic Subscribers, sold or 
     traded and such additional acquisitions shall be deemed to be New 
     Acquisitions under this Section 3.3(e) and such additional Equivalent Basic 
     Subscribers shall be deemed to be Allocated Subscribers, in which event the 
     Purchase Price shall not be increased pursuant to this Section 3.3(e) with 
     respect to such Allocated Subscribers. 
 
          (f) The Purchase Price shall be reduced with respect to (i) the 
     capitalized vehicle leases assumed by Buyer at Closing by an amount equal 
     to (A) 50% of the first $2,200,000 of capitalized vehicle leases assumed by 
     Buyer at Closing, and (B) 100% of all capitalized vehicle leases assumed by 
     Buyer at Closing in excess of $2,200,000 and (ii) the greater of (x) 
     $1,700,000 and (y) pro rata Launch Incentive Payments received by Seller 
     prior to Closing in conjunction with any programming services launched by 
     the Systems prior to December 31, 1999 which Buyer is obligated to carry. 
     If, after the  
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     Closing, (i) Seller receives any Launch Incentive Payments attributable to 
     programming services provided after Closing, Seller shall promptly pay such 
     amounts to Buyer and (ii) Buyer receives any Launch Incentive Payments 
     attributable to programming services provided prior to Closing, Buyer shall 
     promptly pay such amounts to Seller. 
 
          (g) The Purchase Price shall be reduced to reflect the number of First 
     Right Subscribers. 
 
 
          (h) The Purchase Price shall be reduced with respect to (i) the 
     obligation of Buyer to render service to any person upon the redemption of 
     coupons or other credits issued by Seller in connection with the settlement 
     of, or any judgment rendered in connection with, certain litigation 
     relating to the payment of late charges as disclosed in Schedule 4.7 (the 
                                                             ------------      
     "Settlement"), to the extent such obligation is not satisfied by any 
     marketing subsidy, (ii) all cash payments and attorneys' fees required to 
     be paid by Buyer in connection with the Settlement and (iii) any reduction 
     to Seller's annualized revenues as a result of the Settlement in excess of 
     that permitted under Schedule 3.3(h) hereof.  At such time as a Settlement 
                          ---------------                                       
     becomes effective, if Buyer shall be obligated to issue coupons or other 
     credits in connection with such Settlement, Buyer shall deliver such 
     coupons to its Customers as soon as commercially practicable, but in no 
     event more than six (6) months after such coupons or other credits are 
     awarded or issued pursuant to the Settlement.  Adjustments pursuant to this 
     Section 3.3(h) shall be made in connection with the Estimate Statement or 
     the Final Statement to the extent such adjustments are available.  To the 
     extent such adjustments are not available prior to the resolution of the 
     Final Statement, such adjustments shall be resolved upon the termination of 
     any redemption period, with respect to coupons, or at such time as the 
     right to an adjustment arises, with respect to the other items set forth in 
     this Section 3.3(h). In the event a Settlement becomes effective at any 
     time prior to the end of the ninth (9th ) month following the Closing Date 
     (the "Escrow Cutoff Date"), Buyer and Seller shall instruct the Indemnity 
     Deposit Escrow Agent to retain, or if such amounts are not available from 
     the unallocated balance of the Indemnity Escrow Deposit, Seller shall 
     deliver to the Indemnity Escrow Deposit Agent, by the wire transfer of 
     immediately available funds or letter of credit, an amount equal to fifty 
     percent (50%) of the aggregate value of any coupons or other credits issued 
     or to be issued in connection with the Settlement and outstanding as of the 
     Escrow Cutoff Date (i.e., exclusive of any redeemed or expired coupons or 
     credits) (the "Redemption Fund"), to be held by the Indemnity Deposit 
     Escrow Agent as security for Seller's continuing reimbursement obligation 
     to Buyer.  In the event a Settlement has not been reached prior to the 
     Escrow Cutoff Date, Buyer and Seller shall instruct the Indemnity Deposit 
     Escrow Agent to retain, or if such amounts are not available from the 
     unallocated balance of the Indemnity Escrow Deposit, Seller shall deliver 
     to the Indemnity Escrow Deposit to be held as part of the Redemption Fund, 
     by the wire transfer of immediately available funds or letter of credit, an 
     amount equal to fifty percent (50%) of Seller's contingent liability with 
     respect to the issuance of coupons or other credits in connection with a 
     future Settlement.  The amount of Seller's contingent liability shall be 
     determined by the mutual agreement of Buyer and Seller no later than sixty 
     (60) days prior to the Escrow Cutoff Date, or if  
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     Buyer and Seller are unable to reach such agreement, Buyer and Seller shall 
     submit to the Arbitrator, for review and resolution, any and all matters 
     relating to the determination of the amount of Seller's contingent 
     liability with respect to any future Settlement. Any claims with respect to 
     the Redemption Fund shall be administered by the Indemnity Deposit Escrow 
     Agent in accordance with the provisions of the Indemnity Deposit Escrow 
     Agreement. Upon the fulfillment by Buyer of all obligations with respect to 
     coupons or other credits issued in connection with the Settlement and the 
     reimbursement of Buyer by Seller with respect to all such amounts, Buyer 
     and Seller shall instruct the Indemnity Deposit Escrow Agent to distribute 
     all remaining amounts constituting the Redemption Fund to Seller. Buyer 
     will use its commercially reasonable best efforts not to honor any expired 
     coupons or other credits. In all events Seller shall remain fully 
     responsible for all amounts described in the first sentence of this Section 
     3.3(h) including any such amounts in excess of the redemption fund without 
     regard to any time limitation until fully paid. 
 
          (i) The Purchase Price shall be increased or reduced as otherwise 
     provided herein or as agreed to by Buyer and Seller. 
 
Seller shall prepare and deliver to Buyer, at least 15 business days prior to 
the Closing Date, a statement (the "Estimate Statement") showing the amount 
reasonably estimated by Seller, in good faith, to be the net amount, if any, of 
the adjustments provided for in this Section 3.3, including, in reasonable 
detail, the prorations and adjustments forming the basis of such amount.  Prior 
to the Closing, Seller shall provide Buyer with copies of such books and records 
as Buyer may reasonably request for purposes of verifying the adjustments set 
forth in the Estimate Statement.  The Purchase Price paid by Buyer shall be the 
estimated adjustment amount set forth in the Estimate Statement and shall be 
adjusted after the Closing, if necessary, pursuant to Section 3.4 hereof; 
provided, that, if prior to the Closing, Buyer gives Seller notice that it 
reasonably believes that any of the proposed prorations and adjustments are 
materially incorrect, Seller and Buyer agree to work together in good faith to 
resolve on or before the Closing Date any disagreement with respect to any 
matter set forth in the Estimate Statement. 
 
     3.4  Final Adjustment Amount. 
          -----------------------    
 
          (a) Within 90 days after the Closing Date, Buyer shall prepare and 
     deliver to Seller a statement (the "Final Statement"), setting forth in 
     reasonable detail Buyer's good faith determination of the actual adjustment 
     to the Purchase Price (the "Final Adjustment Amount").  During the 45-day 
     period following delivery of the Final Statement to Seller, Buyer shall 
     provide Seller with copies of any books, records, working papers or other 
     information reasonably necessary or useful in the review of the Final 
     Statement and the calculation of the Final Adjustment Amount to enable 
     Seller to verify the accuracy of the Final Statement.  The Final Statement 
     shall become final and binding upon all parties hereto on the 45th day 
     following delivery thereof (without counting such day of delivery) to 
     Seller unless Seller gives written notice of disagreement with the Final 
     Statement (a "Notice of Disagreement") to Buyer prior to such date.  Any 
     Notice of Disagreement shall specify in reasonable detail the nature of any 
     disagreement so asserted and relate solely to the review of the Final 
     Statement and the calculation of the Final Adjustment Amount. 
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          (b) If a Notice of Disagreement is given by Seller in a timely manner, 
     then the Final Statement (as adjusted, if applicable) shall become final 
     and binding upon all parties hereto on the earlier of (i) the date Seller 
     and Buyer resolve in writing any differences they may have with respect to 
     all matters specified in the Notice of Disagreement and (ii) the date all 
     disputed matters are finally resolved in writing by the Arbitrator.  During 
     the 45-day period following the delivery of a Notice of Disagreement, 
     Seller and Buyer shall seek in good faith to resolve any differences which 
     they may have with respect to any matter specified in the Notice of 
     Disagreement and each shall provide the other upon request with copies of 
     any books, records, working papers or other information reasonably 
     necessary or useful in the preparation or calculation of (x) the Final 
     Adjustment Amount, (y) the Final Statement, or (z) the Notice of 
     Disagreement.  At the end of such 45-day period if there has been no 
     resolution of the matters specified in the Notice of Disagreement, Seller 
     and Buyer shall submit to the Arbitrator for review and resolution any and 
     all matters arising under this Section which remain in dispute.  The 
     "Arbitrator" shall be the New York City office of KPMG Peat Marwick LLP or, 
     if such firm is unable or unwilling to act, such other nationally 
     recognized independent public accounting firm as shall be agreed upon by 
     Seller and Buyer.  The Arbitrator shall render a decision resolving the 
     matters submitted to the Arbitrator within 60 days following submission 
     thereto (or as soon thereafter as reasonably practicable).  The fees and 
     expenses of the Arbitrator pursuant to this Agreement shall be allocated by 
     the Arbitrator in a manner that takes into account those factors that are 
     deemed relevant by the Arbitrator. 
 
          (c) If as a result of any adjustments made pursuant to this Section 
     3.4, Buyer is finally determined to owe any amount to Seller, Buyer shall 
     within three (3) business days pay such amount to Seller, and if Seller is 
     finally determined to owe any amount to Buyer, Seller shall within three 
     (3) business days pay such amount to Buyer.  Any such payments shall be 
     made by federal wire transfer of immediately available funds to an account 
     designated in writing by the party receiving payment and shall bear 
     interest from the Closing Date at the rate of 6% per annum. 
 
     3.5  Transfer Taxes.  Any sales, use, transfer, recording or other 
          --------------                                                  
similar taxes due as a result of the transactions provided for herein shall be 
paid one-half by Seller and one-half by Buyer. 
 
     3.6  Allocation of Purchase Price.  The Purchase Price shall be allocated 
          ----------------------------                                           
among the Transferred Assets in the manner agreed upon by Buyer and Seller prior 
to Closing and such allocation shall be used by Buyer and Seller for all 
relevant purposes, including the preparation and filing of all applicable income 
tax returns and reports.  In the event Buyer and Seller cannot agree upon the 
allocation of the Purchase Price prior to Closing, each party shall determine 
its own allocation in such manner as such party deems reasonable and 
appropriate. 
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                                   ARTICLE IV 
 
                    Representations and Warranties of Seller 
                    ---------------------------------------- 
 
     Seller represents and warrants to Buyer as follows: 
 
     4.1  Due Organization.  Seller is a limited partnership duly organized  
          ---------------- 
and validly existing under the laws of the State of Missouri and has the 
partnership power and authority to conduct its business as heretofore conducted 
and to own or hold under lease its properties and assets. Seller is duly 
qualified and in good standing in every jurisdiction where the character of the 
properties owned or leased by, or the nature of the business conducted by, 
Seller makes qualification to transact business as a foreign entity necessary, 
except such jurisdictions where a failure to so qualify would not have a 
material adverse effect on the Transferred Assets, financial condition or 
results of operations of Seller's Business or on Seller's ability to perform its 
obligations hereunder and consummate the transactions contemplated hereby. 
 
     4.2  Authorization.  Seller has full partnership power to execute and  
          ------------- 
deliver this Agreement and to perform its obligations hereunder, and the 
execution, delivery and performance hereof and the consummation of the 
transactions contemplated hereby have been duly authorized by all requisite 
partnership action. 
 
     4.3  No Breach or Conflict.  Subject to the receipt of the Consents,  
          --------------------- 
neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement, nor compliance with the 
terms and provisions hereof, on the part of Seller will (a) cause Seller to 
breach any Legal Requirement or Order that is applicable to Seller, Seller's 
Business or the Systems, (b) conflict with or result in a violation of the 
certificate of limited partnership or the agreement of limited partnership of 
Seller, (c) conflict with or result in a breach of any of the terms, conditions 
or provisions of any agreement or instrument to which Seller is a party or by 
which it may be bound, or constitute a default thereunder (whether immediate or 
subject to the passage of time or giving of notice) or (d) result in the 
creation of any claim, liability, mortgage, lien, security interest, security 
agreement, conditional sale or other title retention agreement, pledge, option, 
charge, assessment, restrictive agreement, restriction, encumbrance, adverse 
interest, restriction on transfer or any exception to or defect in title 
(including reservations, rights of way, possibilities of reverter, 
encroachments, easements, rights of entry, restrictive covenants, leases and 
licenses) (collectively "Liens") of any nature whatsoever, or give to others any 
interest or rights, in or with respect to any of Seller's properties or assets 
related to the Systems, which breach, conflict, default or creation would, 
individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect on the 
Transferred Assets, financial condition or results of operations of Seller's 
Business. 
 
     4.4  Third-Party Consents.  Each person or Governmental Authority to  
          -------------------- 
whom notice is required to be given or whose consent, waiver or other action 
with respect to the execution, delivery or performance of this Agreement by 
Seller or the transfer of the Transferred Assets to Buyer is legally or 
contractually required (the "Consents") is identified on Schedule 4.4 hereto. So 
long as Schedule 4.4 is prepared by Seller in good faith, the failure  
        ------------ 
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to include any notices or consents that are not, individually or in the 
aggregate, material shall not be deemed to be a breach of this Section 4.4. 
                                                               ----------- 
 
     4.5  Enforceability.  This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered 
          -------------- 
by Seller, and constitutes a valid and binding obligation of Seller enforceable 
in accordance with its terms, except as may be limited by bankruptcy, 
insolvency, reorganization, fraudulent conveyance, moratorium or other similar 
laws affecting creditors' rights generally or by the application of general 
principles of equity. 
 
     4.6  Transferred Assets. 
          ------------------ 
 
          (a) The Transferred Assets include all of the rights and properties, 
     other than the Excluded Assets, owned, used or held for use by Seller and 
     reasonably necessary to operate the Systems as currently operated by Seller 
     and to provide cable television service to the Systems' Customers as 
     currently provided.  Seller has good and marketable title (or in the case 
     of Owned Real Estate good and marketable, indefeasible, fee simple title or 
     in the case of Leased Real Estate or leased equipment, a valid leasehold 
     interest) to the Transferred Assets, free and clear of any Liens, except 
     for Liens to be released before Closing and (a) Liens for general taxes and 
     assessments and governmental charges not yet due and payable; (b) minor 
     encumbrances which do not affect the transferability, value or continued 
     use thereof as currently used by Seller; (c) Liens and exceptions set forth 
     on Schedule 4.6(a); and (d) in the case of the Real Estate, (i) any Real 
        ---------------                                                       
     Estate Leases pursuant to which Seller is the lessor, (ii) municipal and 
     zoning ordinances, (iii) such rights-of-way as do not interfere with the 
     present use of the property, and (iv) easements for public utilities, 
     recorded building and use restrictions and covenants, and other minor 
     encumbrances, provided none of the foregoing interfere with the value or 
     continued use of the property subject thereto as currently operated by 
     Seller (clauses (a) through (d) collectively, the "Permitted Liens"). 
 
          (b) Except as set forth on Schedule 4.6(b), Seller has not received 
                                     ---------------                          
     any written notice or claim of any breach, default or termination and 
     Seller has no knowledge of any fact giving rise to a breach, default or 
     termination, with respect to any of the Leased Real Estate, the breach, 
     default or termination of which would have a materially adverse effect on 
     any of the Systems, and no special assessments have been made with respect 
     to the Owned Real Estate or, to Seller's knowledge, the Leased Real Estate, 
     by any Governmental Authority.  The Owned Real Estate, and to Seller's 
     knowledge, the Leased Real Estate, conform in all material respects with 
     applicable building, zoning, environmental, land use and other Legal 
     Requirements and Orders which affect the Real Estate.  Schedule 4.6(b) sets 
                                                            ---------------      
     forth a true and complete list of the Real Estate, including the legal 
     descriptions of all Owned Real Estate included in the Real Estate.  True 
     and correct copies of all deeds pertaining to the Owned Real Estate set 
     forth on Schedule 4.6(b) have been delivered or made available to Buyer. 
              ---------------                                                  
     Except as set forth in Schedule 4.6(b), no condemnation, eminent domain, 
                            ---------------                                   
     zoning or similar proceedings are pending, or, to Seller's knowledge, 
     threatened with respect to the Owned Real Estate or, to Seller's knowledge, 
     the Leased Real Estate.  The improvements located on the Real Estate, 
     generally are in good operating condition and repair, ordinary wear and 
     tear excepted, and are currently  
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     maintained, are available for immediate use in the conduct of the business 
     or operations of the Systems in the manner currently conducted by Seller 
     and comply in all material respects with all applicable building or zoning 
     codes or regulations. All material occupancy and other certificates and 
     permits necessary to the present lawful use and occupancy of the Owned Real 
     Estate and to Seller's knowledge, the Leased Real Estate, and the Equipment 
     thereon, have been issued and are in full force and effect and Seller is in 
     compliance in all material respects with respect thereto. Seller has 
     complied with all written notices or orders to correct violations of Legal 
     Requirements or Orders issued to Seller against or affecting any of the 
     Owned Real Estate or any of the Leased Real Estate during Seller's 
     occupancy or use thereof. All of the Real Estate has practical access to 
     public roads and has all utilities and other services necessary to the 
     operation of the Systems as currently conducted. To Seller's knowledge, 
     Seller has not received any request or notice to relocate, remove or 
     reinstall any of its head-end facilities which has not been resolved, 
     except as set forth on Schedule 4.6(b). To Seller's knowledge, except as 
                            --------------- 
     set forth on Schedule 4.6(b), all Real Estate includes all material 
                  ---------------      
     easements, material rights of way and other material interests in real 
     property necessary in the business and the operations of the Systems as 
     currently conducted, all of which are valid and in full force and effect. 
 
      4.7  Claims, Litigation and Disputes.  Except as disclosed in Schedule  
           -------------------------------  
4.7, and except for actions, proceedings or investigations affecting the cable 
television industry in general (in each case on a national or state basis), 
there is no judgment, Order or settlement agreement outstanding or any action, 
suit, proceeding, litigation or formal investigative proceeding pending or, to 
Seller's knowledge, threatened which would affect (i) Seller's ability to 
perform its obligations hereunder, (ii) the Transferred Assets, (iii) the rights 
granted under the Assumed Contracts, (iv) the financial condition or results of 
operations of the Systems or (v) the ownership, use, maintenance or operation of 
the Transferred Assets and the Systems by Buyer. There is no strike, work slow 
down, picketing or unresolved labor dispute or proceedings pending or, to 
Seller's knowledge, threatened affecting any of Seller's employees who render 
services for the Systems. 
 
      4.8  Service Rates.  Schedule 4.8 hereto sets forth Seller's rates as  
           ------------- 
of December 31, 1998 for Basic Service and CPST tier and rate increases budgeted 
by Seller for 1999. 
 
      4.9  Cable Plant and Customers.  As of December 31, 1998, the Systems  
           ------------------------- 
have approximately 499,000 homes passed, and not more than approximately 9,700 
miles of plant, exclusive of 332 miles of owned fiber plant and 62 miles of 
leased fiber plant, of which not more than approximately 3,450 miles are 
underground construction. Schedule 4.9 hereto sets forth information as of March 
                          ------------ 
31, 1999 with respect to an estimate of the number of Individual Basic Customers 
and Basic Customer Equivalents. The Systems have not less than 165,000 pay 
television units (exclusive of the Disney Channel) as of December 31, 1998. The 
bandwidth capacity of, and number of headends located at, the Systems as of 
December 31, 1998 and the Systems budgeted to be upgraded or rebuilt in 1999 are 
set forth on Schedule 4.9. 
             ------------ 
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     4.10  Assumed Contracts. 
           ----------------- 
 
          (a) Except as set forth in Schedule 4.10(a), the Assumed Contracts 
                                     ----------------                        
     include all agreements (other than agreements referred to in Section 1.2) 
     that are necessary for the operation of the Systems as currently conducted. 
     Except as disclosed in Schedule 4.10(a) hereto, all of the Assumed 
                            ----------------                            
     Contracts are in full force and effect and there has been no material 
     breach, violation or default or notice of claim of material breach, 
     violation or default by Seller, or to the knowledge of Seller, any other 
     party thereto, and Seller is not aware of any event which has occurred that 
     with notice or lapse of time or both could constitute a material breach, 
     violation or default by any party thereto. 
 
          (b) Schedule 4.10(b) sets forth a true and complete list of the 
              ----------------                                             
     Assumed Contracts other than Service Orders and Customer Agreements.  True 
     and correct copies of the Assumed Contracts set forth on Schedule 4.10(b) 
                                                              ---------------- 
     have been delivered or made available to Buyer.  So long as Schedule 
                                                                 -------- 
     4.10(b) is prepared by Seller in good faith, the failure to include any 
     -------                                                                 
     agreements that are not, individually or in the aggregate, material shall 
     not be deemed to be a breach of this Section 4.10(b). 
 
     4.11  Compliance With Laws.  Except as disclosed on Schedule 4.11 or as  
           -------------------- 
otherwise provided in this Section 4.11, the ownership and use of the 
                           ------------ 
Transferred Assets and the operation of the Systems and Seller's Business do not 
violate any Legal Requirements or Orders applicable to Seller, Seller's Business 
or the Systems, including the Communications Act and the licensing division of 
the United States Copyright Office (other than FCC technical rules and 
regulations which are subject to the provisions of Section 4.17(b) hereof), 
except where the failure to be in compliance would not have a material adverse 
effect on any of the Systems or Seller's Business. Seller is in compliance with 
the National Electric Code, the National Electric Safety Code and pole make- 
ready requirements, except as set forth on Schedule 4.11 or where the failure to 
                                           ------------- 
be in compliance would not have a material adverse effect on the Transferred 
Assets, financial condition or results of operations of Seller's Business, taken 
as a whole. No claims or investigations alleging any violation by Seller of any 
such Legal Requirements or Orders are pending or, to Seller's knowledge, 
threatened, and, to Seller's knowledge, no basis exists to claim that such a 
violation exists. 
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     4.12  Taxes, Fees and Utilities. 
           ------------------------- 
 
          (a) Seller has filed with appropriate agencies all tax returns 
     required by law to be filed by Seller with respect to the existence or 
     operations of the Transferred Assets, Seller's Business or the Systems. 
     Such tax returns were properly prepared and reflect the full amount due 
     thereunder.  No audit of any federal, state or municipal returns or other 
     tax returns filed by or on behalf of Seller relating to the operation of 
     Seller's Business or the Systems is in progress, pending or, to Seller's 
     knowledge, threatened.  No unpaid federal, state or local income or other 
     tax or outstanding deficiencies, assessments, interests or penalties exists 
     with respect to the operation of the Systems, except for accrued taxes not 
     yet due and payable or taxes subject to a bona fide dispute.  The reserves 
     for taxes (including those subject to a bona fide dispute) made by Seller 
     are adequate to cover the tax liabilities of Seller as of the date thereof 
     and nothing has occurred subsequently to make any such reserves inadequate. 
 
          (b) Seller has paid in full any and all license fees, copyright fees, 
     franchise fees, FCC regulatory fees, business permit costs, pole attachment 
     fees, unemployment and worker's compensation insurance contributions and 
     utility bills required to be paid. 
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     4.13  Franchises. 
           ---------- 
 
          (a) Schedule 4.13(a) contains a true and complete list of all 
              ----------------                                          
     Franchises (including expiration date and franchise fees) held, used or 
     needed to operate the Systems.  Except as contained in the Franchises, the 
     Franchises are not subject to any conditions or restrictions other than 
     such as may exist by virtue of acts of Congress, the rules and regulations 
     of federal regulatory agencies or laws and rules adopted by the various 
     local governing authorities of the jurisdictions in which the Systems are 
     located.  Other than orders, actions, proceedings or investigations 
     generally applicable to the cable television industry in the United States 
     (in each case on a national or state basis) or as disclosed on Schedule 
                                                                    -------- 
     4.13(a), there are no proceedings pending which would adversely affect the 
     -------                                                                    
     validity of any Franchise or the terms and provisions thereof, other than 
     renewal discussions in the ordinary course of business.  Except as 
     disclosed on Schedule 4.13(a), each of the Franchises is in full force and 
                  ----------------                                              
     effect and there has been no breach, violation or default, in any material 
     respect, or notice of claim of breach, violation or default, in any 
     material respect, by Seller.  Except as disclosed on Schedule 4.13(a), each 
                                                          ----------------       
     System is currently in compliance in all material respects with all of its 
     governing Franchises.  The Franchises duly authorize Seller and, upon the 
     giving of appropriate notices and the receipt of appropriate Consents, 
     Buyer, as successor-in-interest to Seller, to operate the Systems as and 
     where they are currently operated.  Except as set forth on Schedule 4.13 
                                                                ------------- 
     (a), as of the date of this Agreement, no franchising authority has granted 
     a franchise to any person other than Seller or Buyer within any part of the 
     franchised areas in which the Systems currently are authorized to operate, 
     except with respect to de minimis portions of such franchised areas and, to 
     Seller's knowledge, except as set forth on Schedule 4.13(a), no grants or 
                                                ----------------               
     applications are pending.  Schedule 4.13(a) sets forth all Franchises whose 
                                ----------------                                 
     terms expire within 36 months after the date hereof and whether a timely 
     Renewal Notice has been submitted with respect to such Franchises and there 
     has been no waiver by Seller of any right under any Renewal Notice or any 
     renewal right under the Communications Act.  Except as set forth on 
                                                                         
     Schedule 4.13(a), Seller, to its knowledge, has submitted timely Renewal 
     ----------------                                                         
     Notices to the appropriate Governmental Authorities.  Schedule 4.13(a) sets 
                                                           ----------------      
     forth a list of those Franchises which, as of March 31, 1999, are subject 
     to a right of first refusal, right of first offer, right of first 
     negotiation, option or similar right to acquire the Franchise and all or 
     any part of the Systems or the Transferred Assets upon transfer of the 
     Franchise (in addition to those Franchises located in the State of 
     Minnesota) and the number of Basic Equivalent Subscribers served by such 
     Franchises.  Except as set forth on Schedule 4.13(a), Seller has no reason 
                                         ----------------                       
     to believe that any Franchise relating to the Systems will not be renewed 
     in the ordinary course on reasonable terms. 
 
               (b) Schedule 4.13(b) contains a true and complete list of all 
                   ----------------                                          
     Other Permits included in the Transferred Assets.  The Other Permits are in 
     full force and effect and there has been no breach, violation or default or 
     notice or claim of any breach, violation or default with respect thereto, 
     except where the failure to be in full force and effect, such breach, 
     violation or default, or notice or claim thereof would not, individually or 
     in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect on any System. Copies of 
     the Other Permits  
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     (other than those not represented by an acknowledged filing, certificate or 
     other document) have been delivered or made available to Buyer. So long as 
     Schedule 4.13(b) is prepared by Seller in good faith, the failure to 
     ----------------                          
     include any Other Permits that are not material, individually or in the 
     aggregate, shall not be deemed to be a breach of this Section 4.13(b). 
 
     4.14  FCC and Copyright Reports. 
           ------------------------- 
 
          (a) Except as set forth on Schedule 4.14(a), all current EEO reports 
                                     ----------------                          
     and all other current material reports and statements required to be filed 
     by Seller with the FCC and franchising authorities with respect to the 
     Systems (other than aeronautical reports and CLI reports which are subject 
     to the provisions of Section 4.17(b) hereof) have been filed, and such 
     reports are accurate and complete in all material respects.  Seller has 
     received certification from the FCC that all FCC employment units of the 
     Systems are in compliance with applicable EEO requirements for 1997 and 
     1998. 
 
          (b) Except as set forth on Schedule 4.14(a), Seller has filed all rate 
                                     ----------------                            
     regulation forms required to be filed with the FCC and/or appropriate 
     franchising authority for the Systems.  Seller has made available to Buyer 
     true and complete copies of such forms.  Set forth on Schedule 4.14(a) is 
                                                           ----------------    
     an accurate list of all Franchise areas that are certified to regulate 
     rates pursuant to the laws and regulations of the FCC, a list of all 
     Franchise areas in which a complaint regarding cable programming services 
     is pending with the FCC and a list of all Franchise areas in which an 
     appeal of a local rate order is pending with the FCC.  To Seller's 
     knowledge, except as set forth on Schedule 4.14(a), (i) the Systems are in 
                                       ----------------                         
     material compliance with all applicable FCC rate regulations and (ii) 
     Seller has no knowledge that any other Franchise area has threatened, in 
     writing, within the six (6) months preceding the date of this Agreement, to 
     apply for certification to regulate rates pursuant to the laws and 
     regulations of the FCC.  All factual statements made by or on behalf of the 
     Systems in any such form are accurate and complete in all material 
     respects. 
 
          (c) Schedule 4.14(a) sets forth a true and complete list of all FCC 
              ----------------                                                
     Licenses held, used or needed to operate the Systems.  Except as contained 
     in the FCC Licenses, the FCC Licenses are not subject to conditions or 
     restrictions other than such as may exist by virtue of acts of Congress, 
     the rules and regulations of federal regulatory agencies or laws.  Except 
     as disclosed in Schedule 4.14(a), the Systems are in compliance in all 
                     ----------------                                       
     material respects with the provisions of the FCC Licenses.  Except as 
     disclosed on Schedule 4.14(a), each of the FCC Licenses is in full force 
                  ----------------                                            
     and effect and there has been no breach, violation or default, in any 
     material respect, or notice of breach, violation or default, in any 
     material respect, by Seller. 
 
          (d) Except as set forth on Schedule 4.14(d), Seller has timely filed 
                                     ----------------                          
     all Statements of Account under Section 111 of the Copyright Act and all 
     other material notices and reports required to be filed with the United 
     States Copyright Office since January 1, 1996 with respect to the Systems, 
     and such reports are accurate and complete in all material respects and all 
     fees required to be paid with respect to the Systems under  
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     the terms of Section 111 of the United States Copyright Act of 1976, as 
     amended, and the rules and regulations of the Copyright Office thereunder, 
     have been properly computed and paid by Seller, in all material respects. 
     Seller has not received any substantive inquiries with respect to its 
     Statements of Account since January 1, 1996 except as set forth on  
     Schedule 4.14(d) that could reasonably be expected to result in additional 
     ----------------      
     copyright fees. 
 
     4.15  Financial Statements.  Seller has provided to Buyer true and  
           -------------------- 
complete copies of (i) its audited financial statements including balance sheets 
as of December 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996, and statements of operation and cash 
flow for the years ended December 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996, certified by Arthur 
Andersen, LLP, Seller's certified public accountants, and (ii) its unaudited 
financial statements for the two months ending February 28, 1999; each of which 
was prepared from the books and records of account of Seller kept in the normal 
course of business and in accordance with GAAP (except for the absence of 
footnotes in the unaudited monthly statements), consistently applied in 
accordance with Seller's past practices, and each of which presents fairly the 
financial condition and statements of operations and cash flow of the Seller for 
the period covered thereby, subject, however, to normal year end audit 
adjustments with respect to unaudited information, none of which are expected to 
be material in amount. Since December 31, 1998, Seller has conducted the 
business and the operations of Seller's Business only in the ordinary course 
consistent with past practice and there has been no material adverse change in 
the Transferred Assets, financial condition or results of operations of Seller's 
Business, each taken as a whole,. 
 
     4.16  Brokerage Fees.  Except for Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette, Veronis,  
           --------------  
Suhler and Daniels and Associates (the "Brokers"), whose fees will be paid by 
Seller pursuant to a separate agreement, no person or other entity acting on 
behalf of Seller is entitled to any brokerage or finder's fee or commission in 
connection with this Agreement. 
 
     4.17  Condition of Systems. 
           -------------------- 
 
          (a) The Systems and the Transferred Assets generally are in good 
     operating condition and repair, ordinary wear and tear excepted, and are 
     currently maintained. 
 
          (b) Except as set forth on Schedule 4.17(b), the Systems monitor 
                                     ----------------                      
     signal leakage, maintain applicable leakage logs, conduct the cumulative 
     leakage tests, demonstrate compliance with the cumulative leakage criteria 
     by showing a passing cumulative leakage index or a successful flyover, and 
     comply in all material respects with the frequency separation standards and 
     the requirements set forth in 47 C.F.R.  76.610 through 76.619, except 
     where the failure to be in compliance would not have a material adverse 
     effect on a System.  Seller has filed with the FCC all signal leakage 
     reports (FCC Form 320) required to be filed under the FCC's rules and 
     regulations (the "CLI Reports") and has not received any notification or 
     objection thereto by the FCC which has not been promptly resolved by Seller 
     with no material adverse effect on Seller's Business.  Seller has made 
     available to Buyer true and complete copies of all CLI Reports which it has 
     filed since January 1, 1998.  All frequencies within the restricted 
     aeronautical and navigational  
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     bands (i.e., 108-137 MHz and 225-400 MHz) that are currently being used on 
     such Systems have been authorized in all material respects for such use by 
     the FCC. 
 
     4.18  Employees; Compensation; Unions. 
           ------------------------------- 
 
          (a) To Seller's knowledge, Seller is in compliance in all material 
     respects with all applicable Legal Requirements and Orders relating to the 
     employment of labor.  Seller has no written  or oral contracts of 
     employment with any person other than oral employment agreements terminable 
     at will without penalty, none of which would require Buyer to employ any of 
     Seller's employees after the Closing Date. 
 
          (b)  Seller is not a party to any collective bargaining agreement or 
     other contract with any labor organization regarding any of its employees. 
     Seller has not recognized or agreed to recognize and is not required to 
     recognize any union or other collective bargaining representative with 
     respect to Seller's employees. None of the employees of the System are 
     unionized nor, to Seller's knowledge, is any effort currently underway to 
     organize any such employees. 
 
         (c)  To Seller's knowledge, except as set forth in Schedule 4.18, 
                                                            -------------  
     within the 12-month period ending on the date hereof, no union or other 
     collective bargaining representative has been certified as representing any 
     of Seller's employees, nor has Seller received any written requests from 
     any party for recognition as a representative of Seller's employees for 
     collective bargaining purposes. Except as set forth in Schedule 4.18, to 
                                                            -------------     
     Seller's knowledge, Seller's employees are not engaged in or subject to any 
     organizing activity with respect to any labor organization and no such 
     activity is threatened. 
 
     4.19  Insurance.  All insurance policies pertaining to or required in the 
           --------- 
operations of the Systems are listed on Schedule 4.19 and are in full force and 
                                        ------------- 
effect on the date hereof. Such policies are in amounts which are adequate in 
relation to Seller's Business and the Transferred Assets. Schedule 4.19 also 
                                                          ------------- 
sets forth a list of all bonds pertaining to or required in the operations of 
the Systems. 
 
     4.20  Towers.  Seller has obtained all necessary FAA approvals and  
           ------ 
waivers and all FCC tower registrations with respect to System towers, each of 
which is listed on Schedule 4.20. Such FAA approvals and waivers and FCC tower 
                   ------------- 
registrations are in full force and effect and Seller has received no notice of 
default with respect thereto. Seller has made available to Buyer true and 
complete copies of all documents in its possession listed on Schedule 4.20, as 
                                                             ------------- 
well as all correspondence with any Governmental Authorities having material 
relevance thereto. 
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     4.21  Environmental Matters. 
           --------------------- 
 
          (a) The operations conducted by Seller on the Real Estate are 
     currently being conducted under all environmental, health and safety 
     permits, licenses and other authorizations required under all applicable 
     Environmental Laws to carry on the cable television business as it is being 
     conducted, except for such permits, licenses and other authorizations, the 
     failure of which to obtain, individually or in the aggregate, would not 
     reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on the financial 
     condition or results of operations of Seller's Business, the Transferred 
     Assets or the Systems, each taken as a whole.  Seller has made or given all 
     environmental, health and safety filings, reports and notices required of 
     Seller under applicable Environmental Laws in connection with the operation 
     of its Real Estate, except for such filings, reports and notices, the 
     failure of which to make, individually or in the aggregate, would not 
     reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on the financial 
     condition or results of operations of Seller's Business, the Transferred 
     Assets or the Systems, each taken as a whole.  Each of such permits, 
     licenses and authorizations is in full force and effect and the Real Estate 
     currently is, and to Seller's knowledge, previously has been, operated by 
     Seller in compliance with the terms and conditions thereof and with 
     applicable Environmental Laws and Orders, except to the extent that any 
     noncompliance would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be 
     expected to have a material adverse effect on the Transferred Assets, the 
     financial condition or results of operations of Seller's Business, each 
     taken as a whole, or on any System.  In addition, no notice, notification, 
     demand, request for information, citation, summons or order has been issued 
     to Seller, in writing, or is otherwise known to Seller, no written 
     complaint has been filed against Seller or is otherwise known to Seller, no 
     penalty has been assessed and no investigation or review is pending or, to 
     Seller's knowledge, threatened, by any Governmental Authority or other 
     entity with respect to any alleged failure by Seller to have any 
     environmental, health or safety permit, license or other authorization 
     required under any applicable Environmental Law in connection with the 
     conduct of the business of Seller on the Real Estate or with respect to any 
     generation, treatment, storage, recycling, handling, transportation, 
     discharge, disposal or release of any Hazardous Substances (as defined 
     herein) by Seller on or from the Real Estate.  Seller has delivered to 
     Buyer copies of all environmental studies and reports conducted or received 
     by Seller, or otherwise in Seller's possession, in connection with the Real 
     Estate.  Other than is common and necessary for a business of its type, 
     Seller has not generated or produced any Hazardous Substance at or in 
     connection with any of the Real Estate except in compliance, in all 
     material respects, with all applicable Environmental Laws.  Other than is 
     common and necessary for a business of its type, Hazardous Substances have 
     not been disposed of or otherwise released on or to any Real Estate by 
     Seller during the time of any ownership or possession by Seller or any of 
     its affiliates, or to Seller's knowledge, based upon consultation solely 
     with Seller's regional managers, prior thereto, except in compliance, in 
     all material respects, with applicable Environmental Laws.  To the best 
     knowledge of Seller, based upon consultation solely with Seller's regional 
     managers, (i) no underground storage tanks are currently located on any of 
     the Owned Real Estate, (ii) no Owned Real Estate  has been  
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     used at any time as a gasoline service station or any other facility for 
     storing, pumping, dispensing or producing gasoline or any other petroleum 
     products or wastes (iii) no building or other structure on any Owned Real 
     Estate contains friable asbestos and (iv) there are no incinerators or 
     cesspools in the Owned Real Estate and all domestic waste from the Owned 
     Real Estate is discharged into a public sanitary sewer system. 
     "Environmental Law" shall mean any statute, ordinance, code, law, or 
     regulation, or any other requirement enacted or adopted by any Governmental 
     Authority relating to pollution or protection of public health, safety or 
     welfare or the environment, including those relating to land, use, air, 
     soil, surface water, groundwater (including protection, cleanup, removal, 
     remediation or damage thereof) emissions, discharges, releases or 
     threatened releases of Hazardous Substances into the environment (including 
     ambient air, surface water, ground water or land), or otherwise relating to 
     the manufacture, processing, distribution, use, treatment, storage, 
     disposal, transport or handling of Hazardous Substances, including, without 
     limitation, the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and 
     Liability Act and any state law counterparts. "Hazardous Substances" shall 
     mean any material, substance or waste that is defined as "hazardous" or 
     "toxic" under applicable Environmental Laws. 
 
          (b) Seller has provided Buyer with (i) all written notices or other 
     written materials in Seller's possession that were received from any 
     Governmental Authority having the power to administer or enforce any 
     Environmental Laws (relating to current or past ownership, use or operation 
     of the Real Estate or activities at the Real Estate) and (ii) all materials 
     in Seller's possession relating to any claim, allegation or action by any 
     private third party under any Environmental Law (relating to current or 
     past ownership, use or operation of the Real Estate or activities at the 
     Real Estate). 
 
     4.22  Books and Records.  The books, records and accounts of Seller  
           ----------------- 
accurately and fairly reflect in all material respects and in reasonable detail, 
the material transactions and the material assets and liabilities of Seller. 
 
     4.23  Liabilities to Customers.  There are no obligations or liabilities  
           ------------------------ 
to Customers of the Systems except with respect to (i) prepayments or deposits 
made by such Customers as set forth in the Financial Statements incurred in the 
ordinary course of business consistent with past practices and (ii) the 
obligation to supply services to Customers in the ordinary course of business in 
accordance with and pursuant to the terms of the Franchises. 
 
     4.24  Restoration.  No property of any person has been damaged,  
           ----------- 
destroyed, disturbed or removed, in any material respect, in the process of 
construction or maintenance of the Systems, which has not been, or will not be, 
in the ordinary course of business, repaired, restored or replaced, and as to 
which an adequate reserve has not been established by the Seller. 
 
     4.25  Accounts Receivable.  The Accounts Receivable have not been 
           -------------------                                           
assigned to or for the benefit of any  other person.  The Accounts Receivable 
reflected in the Financial Statements and all Accounts Receivable arising after 
the dates thereof up to and including the Closing Date (to the extent not 
collected) arose and will arise from bona fide  
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transactions in the ordinary course of business. 
 
     4.26  Employee Benefit Plans. 
           ----------------------    
 
           (a)  Schedule 4.26 lists all employee benefit plans (within the  
                -------------        
     meaning of Section 3(3) of ERISA) to which the Seller is or ever has been a 
     party or is or ever has been bound, legally or otherwise. Seller has 
     delivered to Buyer true and complete copies of all documents and summary 
     plan descriptions with respect to such plans, agreements and arrangements, 
     or summary descriptions of any such plans, agreements or arrangements not 
     otherwise in writing. There are no negotiations, demands or proposals that 
     are pending or have been made which concern matters now covered, or that 
     would be covered, by plans, agreements or arrangements of the type 
     described in this Section 4.26. Seller is in compliance with all material 
     provisions of ERISA (as amended through the date of this Agreement), the 
     regulations and published authorities thereunder, and all other Legal 
     Requirements applicable with respect to all such employee benefit plans, 
     agreements and arrangements. Seller has performed all of its obligations 
     under all such plans, agreements and arrangements including, but not 
     limited to, the full payment when due of all amounts required to be made as 
     contributions thereto or otherwise. To the best of Seller's knowledge, 
     there are no actions, suits or claims (other than claims for benefits in 
     the normal course) pending or threatened against such plans or their 
     assets, or arising out of such plans, agreements or arrangements, and, to 
     the best of Seller's knowledge, no facts exist which could give rise to any 
     such actions, suits or claims that might have a material adverse effect on 
     such plans, agreements or arrangements. Except as specified in Schedule 
                                                                    -------- 
     4.26, each of such plans, agreements or arrangements can be terminated 
     ----                                                                   
     within a period of 30 days, without payment of any additional compensation 
     or amount or the additional vesting or acceleration of any such benefits. 
     With respect to each employee benefit plan or a "Plan" (within the meaning 
     of Section 4975(e)(1) of the Code), to the best of Seller's knowledge, 
     there has occurred no transaction prohibited by Section 406 of ERISA and no 
     "prohibited transaction" (within the meaning of Section 4975(c) of the 
     Code). 
 
           (b)  Schedule 4.26 lists all of Seller's "employee pension benefit  
                -------------            
     plans" (within the meaning of Section 3(2) of ERISA) which are also stock 
     bonus, pension or profit sharing plans within the meaning of Section 401(a) 
     of the Code. Each such plan has been duly authorized by the appropriate 
     board of directors. Each such plan is qualified in form and operation under 
     Section 401(a) of the Code and each trust under each such plan is exempt 
     from tax under Section 501(a) of the Code. To the best of Seller's 
     knowledge, no event has occurred that will or could give rise to 
     disqualification or loss of tax-exempt status of any such plan or trust 
     under such Sections. To the best of Seller's knowledge, no event has 
     occurred that will or could subject any such plans to tax under Section 511 
     of the Code. Seller has delivered to Buyer for each such plan copies of the 
     Form 5500 filed in the most recent plan year, including but not limited to 
     all schedules thereto and financial statements with attached opinions of 
     independent accountants. No employee pension benefit plan is subject to 
     Section 412 of the Code. 
 
           (c) No plan listed or referred to in Schedule 4.26 is a plan  
                                                -------------     
     subject to Title IV of ERISA. 
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           (d)  All group health plans of the Seller have been operated in 
     substantial compliance with the group health plan continuation coverage 
     requirements of Part 6 Subtitle B of Title I of ERISA and 4980B of the Code 
     to the extent such requirements are applicable. Except to the extent 
     required under Section 4980B of the Code, the Seller does not provide 
     health or welfare benefits (through the purchase of insurance or otherwise) 
     for any retired or former employees. 
 
           (e)  To the best knowledge of Seller, there has been no act or 
     omission by the Seller that has given rise to fines, penalties, taxes, or 
     related changes under Section 502(c), (i) or (1) Section 4071 of ERISA or 
     Chapter 43 of the Code. 
 
                                   ARTICLE V 
 
                    Representations and Warranties of Buyer 
 
     Buyer represents and warrants to Seller as follows: 
 
     5.1  Due Organization.  Buyer is a New York limited liability company 
          ----------------                                                   
duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the State of New York and 
has the power and authority to conduct its business as heretofore conducted and 
to own or hold under lease its properties and assets.  Buyer is duly qualified 
and in good standing in every jurisdiction where the character of the properties 
owned or leased by, or the nature of the business conducted by, Buyer makes 
qualification to transact business as a foreign entity necessary, except such 
jurisdictions where a failure to so qualify would not have a material adverse 
effect upon the ability of Buyer to perform its obligations under this 
Agreement. 
 
     5.2  Authorization.  Buyer has full limited liability company power to 
          -------------                                                       
execute and deliver this Agreement and to perform its obligations hereunder and 
the execution, delivery and performance hereof and the consummation of the 
transactions contemplated hereby have been duly authorized by all requisite 
limited liability company action. 
 
     5.3  No Breach or Conflict.  Neither the execution and delivery of this 
          ---------------------                                                
Agreement, nor compliance with the terms and provisions hereof, on the part of 
Buyer will (a) cause Buyer to breach any Legal Requirement or Order applicable 
to Buyer, (b) conflict with or result in a violation of the certificate of 
organization or operating agreement of Buyer, or (c) conflict with or result in 
a material breach of any of the terms, conditions or provisions of an agreement 
or instrument to which Buyer is a party or by which it may be bound, or 
constitute a default thereunder, which breach, conflict, default or creation 
would materially affect Buyer's ability to perform its obligations hereunder. 
 
     5.4  Third-Party Consents.  Subject to compliance with the HSR Act and 
          --------------------                                                
the Consents, and the receipt of an executed financing commitment letter, each 
person whose consent to the execution, delivery or performance of this Agreement 
by Buyer is legally or contractually required has been obtained, except where 
the failure to obtain such consent would not have a material adverse affect on 
Buyer's ability to perform its obligations under this  
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Agreement. 
 
     5.5  Enforceability.  This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered 
          --------------                                                         
by Buyer and constitutes a valid and binding obligation of Buyer enforceable in 
accordance with its terms, except as may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, 
reorganization, fraudulent conveyance, moratorium or other similar laws 
affecting creditors' rights generally or by the application of general 
principles of equity. 
 
     5.6  Claims, Litigation and Disputes.  There is no claim or litigation or 
          -------------------------------                                        
formal investigative proceeding pending or, to the knowledge of Buyer, 
threatened against Buyer which would materially affect Buyer's ability to 
perform its obligations hereunder. 
 
     5.7  Brokerage Fees.  No person or other entity acting on behalf of Buyer 
          --------------                                                         
is entitled to any brokerage or finder's fee or commission in connection with 
this Agreement. 
 
     5.8  Buyer's Investigation.  Buyer acknowledges that Seller makes no 
          ---------------------                                              
warranty, express or implied, as to the condition of the Transferred Assets 
except as expressly set forth in this Agreement.  Buyer has not relied upon, and 
Seller shall not be liable for or bound in any manner by, any express or implied 
verbal or written information, warranties, guarantees, promises, statements, 
inducements, representations or opinions pertaining to the Systems or the 
Transferred Assets, except as may be contained in this Agreement and the 
Exhibits, Schedules, certificates and other documents delivered hereunder or in 
connection herewith. 
 
                                   ARTICLE VI 
 
                              Seller's Covenants' 
                              ------------------  
 
     Except and to the extent Buyer may otherwise permit in writing, Seller 
agrees as follows: 
 
     6.1  Inspection.  Between the date of this Agreement and the Closing, 
          ----------                                                         
Seller shall give to Buyer, its officers, agents, employees, counsel, 
accountants, engineers and other representatives, reasonable access to the 
premises and books and records relating to the Systems and, to the extent 
permitted by law, cause Seller's employees to furnish to Buyer such information 
related to the Systems as Buyer shall from time to time reasonably request; 
provided, however, that any such investigation shall be conducted (a) through an 
officer of the general partner of Seller's managing general partner, (b) during 
normal business hours and (c) in such a manner as to not unreasonably interfere 
with the operation of the Systems by Seller. 
 
     6.2  Conduct of Business Pending Closing.  From the date hereof through 
          -----------------------------------                                  
the Closing, Seller shall continue to operate the Systems diligently and in the 
ordinary course in the manner as heretofore conducted, and, subject to the 
provisions of this Agreement, shall not make or initiate any unusual or novel 
methods of purchase, sale, management, marketing, accounting, construction or 
operation, or make any adjustments in the  
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pricing of its services not consistent with Seller's past business practices in 
connection therewith. Seller shall use commercially reasonable efforts to 
preserve the System's existing business relationships with its customers, 
suppliers, Governmental Authorities, employees and others having business 
relations with Seller in connection with the Systems. Without limiting the scope 
of the foregoing, Seller shall: 
 
                (a)  Use, preserve and maintain the Transferred Assets on a 
     basis consistent with past practice and keep the Transferred Assets, in all 
     material respects, in good working condition; 
 
                (b)  Maintain adequate insurance covering the Transferred Assets 
     in effect as of the date of this Agreement; 
 
                (c)  Pay all debts and obligations incurred by it in the 
     operation of its business in the ordinary course of business consistent 
     with past practice; 
 
                (d)  Not commit any act or omit to do any act, nor permit any 
     act or omission to act which may cause a material breach of any of the 
     Assumed Contracts; 
 
                (e)  Maintain its books, accounts and records in the usual 
     manner and on a basis consistent with past practice; 
 
                (f)  Not enter into any agreement or agreements for the sale or 
     lease or otherwise dispose of the Transferred Assets except for sales in 
     the ordinary course of business, sales of Equipment no longer necessary for 
     the operation of the Systems, or sales of damaged or obsolete Equipment, 
     which Equipment shall be replaced; 
 
                (g)  Not decrease any of its Customer rates or conduct any 
     sales, marketing or promotional programs other than marketing or 
     promotional programs consistent with past practices and customary in the 
     cable television industry; provided, however, that, subject to prior 
     disclosure to Buyer, Seller shall not be precluded from (i) seeking usual 
     and ordinary rate increases or (ii) decreasing rates in accordance with 
     applicable Legal Requirements, as required by franchising authorities, or 
     in connection with competitive threats; and, provided further, that, 
     notwithstanding anything in this Section 6.2(g) to the contrary, Seller 
     shall not initiate any marketing, sales or promotional programs, which 
     offer or allow for credits or discounts that reduce standard rates charged 
     to Customers for Seller's Basic Service or CPST tier (other than standard 
     senior rates). 
 
                (h)  Bill Customers on a basis consistent with past practices, 
     sending out bills in the normal monthly routine. 
 
                (i)  Not, without prior consent of Buyer, grant any raises to 
     employees of the Systems, except in the ordinary course of business and in 
     accordance with past practices, or enter into any collective bargaining 
     agreements with respect to such employees; provided, however, that Seller 
     may grant reasonable bonuses to employees of the System, to be paid by 
     Seller, for the purpose of securing employment of such employees until 
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     Closing; 
 
                (j)  Operate the Systems in compliance, in all material 
     respects, with all Legal Requirements and Orders applicable to Seller, the 
     Systems and the Transferred Assets; 
 
                (k)  Promptly inform Buyer in writing of any material adverse 
     change in the condition (financial or otherwise), operations, assets, 
     liabilities, business or prospects of the Transferred Assets, any of the 
     Systems or Seller's Business, other than those affecting the cable 
     television business generally; 
 
                (l)  Maintain inventory for its Systems at normal historical 
     levels consistent with past practices and in all events at levels 
     sufficient to operate the Systems in the ordinary course for not less than 
     45 days after Closing, exclusive of inventory related to the launch of new 
     services and inventory required in connection with the rebuild or upgrade 
     of the Systems under Section 6.2(m); 
 
                (m)  Make capital expenditures in the amount of the Capital 
     Expenditures Amount, in a manner materially consistent with the Capital 
     Expenditures Budget set forth on Schedule 3.3(d), including performing the 
                                      ---------------                        
     rebuild and upgrade of the Systems in a manner materially consistent with 
     the information set forth in Schedule 4.9; 
                                  ------------  
 
                (n)  Implement disconnection of subscribers on a basis 
     consistent with past practices; 
 
                (o)  Use commercially reasonable best efforts to obtain 
     Franchise renewals and extensions with respect to expired and expiring 
     Franchises; 
 
                (p)  Implement rate increases in a manner consistent with 
    amounts set forth on Schedule 4.8, subject to a variance of not more than 
                         ------------              
    $80,000 on an annualized basis in the aggregate; 
 
                (q)  Submit timely Renewal Notices for all Franchises within 30 
    to 36 months prior to expiration of such Franchises and refrain from waiving 
    any of its rights in connection with such Renewal Notices or any renewal 
    rights under the Communications Act; 
 
                (r)  Promptly inform Buyer with respect to any developments or 
    negotiations relating to the late fee proceedings filed against Seller; 
 
                (s)  Not compromise, grant credits against or write off Accounts 
    Receivable with respect to overdue Customer amounts, other than for reasons 
    such as service interruption or waiver of late charges, which have the 
    effect of qualifying any Customer as an Equivalent Basic Subscriber; 
    provided that Seller may otherwise write off Accounts Receivable in the 
    ordinary course on a basis consistent with past practice; 
 
                (t)  Not grant amnesty with respect to amounts owed by former 
    customers; 
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                (u)  Consult with Buyer in connection with the termination or 
    renewal of Seller's management contract with Worldbridge Broadband Services, 
    Inc.; and 
 
                (v)  Not without the prior consent of Buyer, enter into any 
    contract, agreement or other obligation affecting the Systems or the 
    Transferred Assets, except contracts, agreements, or other obligations which 
    are cancelable within 60 days, without penalty, or under which the 
    commitment of Seller does not exceed $25,000 individually or $250,000 in the 
    aggregate, other than contracts, agreements or other obligations in 
    connection with capital expenditures set forth in the Capital Expenditures 
    Budget. 
 
    6.3  Third-Party Consents-.  Seller shall give all notices to or requests 
         --------------------                                                   
of Governmental Authorities and other third parties required to be given by it 
or whose consent is required under the Assumed Contracts or otherwise in 
connection with the transactions contemplated hereby.  In order to facilitate 
the orderly assignment and transfer of all rights, privileges and Franchises 
necessary to own and operate the Systems, and to facilitate the securing of all 
required and necessary approvals and Consents by the franchising authorities or 
any other Governmental Authority or third party, Seller shall proceed after the 
execution of this Agreement to prepare, file and prosecute each request and 
application therefor together with such information as may be necessary and 
appropriate to effect such approvals from franchising authorities, substantially 
in the form of Exhibit C hereto, and from other third-parties, substantially in 
               ---------                                                        
the form of Exhibit D hereto.  Without limiting the foregoing, Seller shall file 
            ---------                                                            
all necessary Forms 394, in form and substance mutually acceptable to Buyer and 
Seller, with appropriate franchising authorities within 20 business days 
following the date of this Agreement.  Buyer will cooperate with Seller, and 
will provide reasonable assistance to Seller in a timely manner, with respect to 
the matters described in this Section 6.3. 
 
    6.4  Further Assurance.  Subject to the terms and conditions of this 
         -----------------                                                 
Agreement, Seller will use all reasonable efforts to take, or cause to be taken, 
all actions, and to do, or cause to be done, all things necessary, proper or 
advisable under applicable laws and regulations to consummate and make effective 
the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the other documents and 
instruments to be delivered pursuant hereto. 
 
    6.5  Confidentiality.  Seller acknowledges that Buyer would be 
         ---------------                                             
irreparably damaged if confidential information concerning the business and 
affairs of Buyer were disclosed to or utilized on behalf of any person not a 
party to this Agreement.  Seller covenants and agrees that it will not, at any 
time directly or indirectly, except in connection with the transactions 
contemplated hereby or to the extent required by law, make use of or divulge, or 
permit any of its agents or employees to make use of or divulge, nonpublic 
information concerning the business, financial or other affairs of, or any of 
the methods of doing business used by Buyer; provided that Seller may disclose 
such information to its investors, lenders, bankers and financial and other 
advisors in connection with the transactions contemplated hereunder or as 
required by any Legal Requirement, Order, or law.  Non-public information will 
not be deemed to include information which (a) is or becomes generally available 
to the public other than as a result of a disclosure by Seller or its 
representatives in violation of this Agreement or (b) was available to Seller on 
a nonconfidential basis from a person (other than Buyer or its  
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representatives) who is not otherwise bound by a confidentiality agreement or is 
not otherwise under an obligation not to transmit such information. 
 
     6.6  Commercially Reasonable Effort.  Seller will use commercially 
          ------------------------------                                  
reasonable efforts to cause the Closing contemplated hereby to occur, including, 
without limitation, commercially reasonable efforts to cause all required third- 
party consents for transfer of the Transferred Assets to be obtained. 
 
     6.7  Delivery of Certain Information.  Seller shall deliver to Buyer, 
          -------------------------------                                    
within 35 days following the end of each month (or within 25 days of the end of 
the last month) prior to the Closing Date, unaudited, combined and regional 
financial reports in the form customarily prepared by Seller with respect to the 
Seller's Business (including, without limitation, the capital expenditure 
summary, the income statement and statement of cash flow of Seller for each 
month and year-to-date, Equivalent Basic Subscriber calculation in a manner 
consistent with Schedule 4.9, the master monthly revenue report, the master 
                ------------                                                
monthly subscriber report, the installation and disconnect activity report by 
month, the monthly receivable aging summary, and such other information as Buyer 
may reasonably request which is in the form customarily prepared by Seller, 
beginning as soon as practicable after the date of this Agreement).  Such 
financial statements and monthly operating statements shall present fairly and 
accurately, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of 
operations of the Seller and the Seller's Business for the period then ended and 
as of such dates and be prepared in accordance with GAAP (except for the absence 
of footnotes on unaudited monthly statements) consistently applied through the 
periods specified, subject to normal year end adjustments. 
 
     6.8  Copyright.  Within 90 days following the Closing Date, or within 
          ---------                                                          
such shorter period as may be reasonably required to enable Buyer to make a 
timely filing with respect to the six month copyright reporting period, Seller 
shall deliver to Buyer a certificate setting forth Seller's gross receipts 
(calculated in a manner which is consistent with the regulations of the 
Copyright Office adopted under (S) 111 of the Copyright Act) derived from 
retransmission of any television or radio broadcast signals during the portion 
of the applicable six month period that includes the Closing Date. 
 
     6.9  Cooperation.  Seller shall use commercially reasonable efforts to 
          -----------                                                         
cause its independent auditors to provide Buyer and Buyer's representatives with 
access to any records or documents pertaining to the Systems and the Transferred 
Assets and to prepare, at Buyer's sole expense, any additional reports or 
documentation that may be required under reporting requirements applicable to 
Buyer. 
 
     6.10  Delivery of Documents.  Seller, promptly and as soon as reasonably 
           ---------------------                                                
practicable following Buyer's request, shall deliver to Buyer correct and 
complete copies of the Assumed Contracts, deeds to Owned Real Estate and such 
other documents as Buyer may reasonably request. 
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                                  ARTICLE VII 
 
                               Covenants of Buyer 
                               ------------------ 
 
     Except and to the extent Seller may otherwise permit in writing, Buyer 
covenants and agrees as follows: 
 
     7.1  Third-Party Consents.  Buyer shall give all notices to Governmental 
          --------------------                                                  
Authorities and other third parties required to be given by it in connection 
with the transactions contemplated hereby.  In order to facilitate the orderly 
assignment and transfer of all rights, privileges and Franchises necessary to 
own and operate the Systems, and to facilitate the securing of all required and 
necessary approvals by franchising authorities or any other Governmental 
Authority, Buyer shall cooperate with Seller, and shall provide Seller with such 
information and complete such application forms as reasonably may be requested 
by Seller to prepare, file and prosecute each request and application therefor. 
Without limiting the foregoing, Buyer will provide Seller with all information, 
and will otherwise cooperate with Seller, to permit Seller to file all necessary 
Forms 394, in form and substance mutually acceptable to Buyer and Seller, with 
appropriate franchising authorities within 20 business days following the date 
of this Agreement.  Buyer shall attend such meetings as Seller may reasonably 
request in connection with obtaining third-party consents, and Buyer shall 
provide such financial information as third parties may reasonably request in 
connection with the review of transfer requests. 
 
     7.2  Confidentiality.  Buyer acknowledges that Seller would be 
          ---------------                                             
irreparably damaged if confidential information concerning the business and 
affairs of Seller and its affiliates were disclosed to or utilized on behalf of 
any person not a party to this Agreement.  Buyer covenants and agrees that it 
will not, at any time, directly or indirectly, except in connection with the 
transactions contemplated hereby or to the extent required by law, make use of 
or divulge, or permit any of its agents or employees to make use of or divulge, 
nonpublic information concerning the business, financial or other affairs of or 
any of the methods of doing business used by Seller or any of its affiliates; 
provided, however, that Buyer may disclose such information to its investors, 
lenders, investment bankers, financial and other advisors in connection with the 
transactions contemplated hereunder or as required by any Legal Requirement, 
Order or law.  Non-public information will not be deemed to include information 
which (a) is or becomes generally available to the public other than as a result 
of disclosure by Buyer or its representatives in violation of this Agreement or 
(b) was available to Buyer on a nonconfidential basis from a person (other than 
Seller or its representatives) who is not otherwise bound by a confidentiality 
agreement or is not otherwise under an obligation not to transmit such 
information. 
 
     7.3  Commercially Reasonable Effort.  Buyer will use commercially 
          ------------------------------                                 
reasonable efforts to cause the Closing contemplated hereby to occur, including, 
without limitation, commercially reasonable efforts to cause all required third- 
party consents for transfer of Transferred Assets to be obtained. 
 
     7.4  Access.  Seller shall, for a period of seven years from the Closing 
          ------                                                                
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Date, have access to, and the right to copy, at its expense, for bona fide 
business purposes and during usual business hours upon reasonable prior notice 
to Buyer, all books and records relating to the operation of the Systems prior 
to the Closing.  Buyer shall retain and preserve, or cause to be retained and 
preserved, all such books and records for such seven-year period. 
 
     7.5  Bonds, Letters of Credit, Etc.  Buyer shall take all necessary 
          -----------------------------                                    
steps, and execute and deliver all necessary documents, to ensure that on the 
Closing Date Buyer has in place the bonds, letters of credit, indemnity 
agreements and similar items necessary in connection with the Assumed Contracts, 
except where the failure to do so would not have a material adverse effect on 
Buyer's ability to consummate the transactions contemplated herein. 
 
     7.6  Further Assurances.  Subject to the terms and conditions of this 
          ------------------                                                 
Agreement, Buyer will use all reasonable efforts to take, or cause to be taken, 
all actions, and to do, or cause to be done, all things necessary, proper or 
advisable under applicable laws and regulations to consummate and make effective 
the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the other documents and 
instruments to be delivered pursuant hereto. 
 
     7.7  Sale Agreement.  Prior to Closing Buyer may, with Seller's consent 
          --------------                                                       
(which may not unreasonably be withheld), assign all of its rights under this 
Agreement to a purchaser in connection with the sale of all or substantially all 
of Buyer's assets, provided that the purchaser assumes, pursuant to an agreement 
in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to Seller, all of Buyer's 
obligations under this agreement. Seller's failure or refusal to consent to the 
assignment shall not be deemed unreasonable if (a) the purchaser is not 
qualified as a transferee of substantially all of the licenses, permits and 
authorizations to be assigned to Buyer pursuant to this Agreement, (b) the 
purchaser does not have the financial resources or the legal ability to 
consummate the purchase on the terms set forth in this Agreement or (c) such 
assignment would delay the Closing.  The parties agree that assignment or 
attempted assignment in violation of this provision will result in immediate and 
irreparable injury to Seller and Seller shall be entitled to (i) an injunction 
and/or decree of specific performance, without any bond or security being 
required and without the necessity of showing actual damages, in accordance with 
the provisions of Section 16.11 hereof, mutatis mutandis or (ii) terminate this 
Agreement in accordance with Section 11.2(b). 
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                                  ARTICLE VIII 
 
                                    HSR Act 
                                    ------- 
 
          8.1  HSR Filings.  Each of the parties hereto will use its 
               -----------                                             
reasonable commercial efforts to comply promptly with any applicable 
requirements under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as 
amended and rules and regulations relating to filing and furnishing of 
information to the Federal Trade Commission ("FTC") and the Antitrust Division 
of the Department of Justice ("DOJ") (the "HSR Act"), the parties' actions to 
include, without limitation, (i) filing or causing to be filed the Notification 
and Report (the "HSR Report") required to be filed by them, or by any other 
person that is part of the same "person" (as defined in the HSR Act) or any of 
them, and taking all other action required by the HSR Act; (ii) coordinating the 
filing of such HSR Reports (and exchanging drafts thereof) so as to present both 
HSR Reports to the FTC and the DOJ within 20 days after the date of execution of 
this Agreement, or as soon thereafter as reasonably practicable, and to avoid 
substantial errors or inconsistencies between the two in the description of the 
transaction; and (iii) using their reasonable commercial efforts to comply with 
any additional request for documents or information made by the FTC or the DOJ 
or by a court and assisting the other party to so comply. 
 
     8.2  Challenges.  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, in the 
          ----------                                                             
event that the consummation of the transactions contemplated under this 
Agreement are challenged by the FTC, the DOJ or any agency or instrumentality of 
the federal government by an action to stay or enjoin such consummation, then 
Buyer and Seller shall cooperate with each other, as reasonably requested, until 
either party does not reasonably believe that there are reasonable grounds to 
contest such action, at which time such party shall have the right to terminate 
this Agreement unless the other party, at its sole cost and expense, elects to 
contest such action, in which case the noncontesting party shall cooperate with 
the contesting party and assist the contesting party, as reasonably requested, 
to contest such action  until such time as any party terminates this Agreement 
under this Section or Article XI.  In the event that a stay or injunction is 
granted (preliminary or otherwise), then either Buyer or Seller may terminate 
this Agreement by prompt written notice to the other.  If any other form of 
equitable relief affecting any party is granted to the FTC, the DOJ or other 
such agency or instrumentality, then the noncontesting party may terminate this 
Agreement by prompt written notice to the other party.  Upon any termination 
pursuant to this Section 8.2 other than as a result of a breach of this 
Agreement, no party shall have any further obligation or liability to the other 
party under this Agreement.  To effectuate the intent of the foregoing 
provisions of this Section 8.2, the parties agree to exchange requested or 
required information in making the filings and in complying as above provided, 
and the parties agree to take all reasonable steps to preserve the 
confidentiality of the information set forth in any filings. 
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                                   ARTICLE IX 
 
                      Conditions to Seller's Obligations' 
                      ----------------------------------  
 
     The obligation of Seller to consummate the Closing shall be subject to the 
fulfillment, prior to or at Closing, of each of the following conditions unless 
waived by Seller in writing: 
 
     9.1  Buyer's Representation and Warranties'.  The representations and 
          -------------------------------------                              
warranties made by Buyer in Article V hereto shall be true and correct  on and 
as of the Closing Date (other than representations and warranties made as of a 
specific date, which shall be true and correct as of the date specified) with 
the same effect as though each such representation or warranty had been made or 
given on and as of the Closing Date, except for such failures to be true and 
correct as would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse 
effect on Buyer's ability to consummate the transactions and perform its other 
obligations under this Agreement. 
 
     9.2  Buyer's Covenants'.  Buyer shall have performed and complied in all 
          -----------------                                                     
material respects with all of the covenants set forth herein which are to be 
performed by it before or as of the Closing Date. 
 
     9.3  Consents. 
          --------    
 
          (a) As of the Closing Date, the number of Equivalent Basic Subscribers 
     served by Retained Franchises, as described on Schedule 9.3 (the "Retained 
                                                    ------------                
     Franchises") hereto shall not exceed 3% of the Subscriber Threshold at 
     Closing; provided, however, that Buyer may at any time designate any 
     Franchise as a non-Retained Franchise, in which event such non-Retained 
     Franchise shall be transferred to Buyer at Closing in accordance with the 
     provisions of this Agreement and shall not be subject to any provisions 
     relating to Retained Franchises. 
 
 
          (b) Seller, with the reasonable cooperation of Buyer, shall have 
     obtained those Consents, other than Consents with respect to Franchises, 
     designated on Schedule 4.4(A) as required consents; provided, however, that 
                   ---------------                                               
     Buyer may elect to waive this condition to Closing with respect to any such 
     Consent and Seller shall have no liability under this Agreement in 
     connection with the failure to obtain such Consent, other than an 
     obligation to continue to attempt to obtain such Consents during the first 
     six (6) months following the Closing in accordance with Section 6.3 hereof 
     and a continuing obligation to cooperate with Buyer in obtaining such 
     Consents thereafter. In the event any Consents for agreements not 
     designated on Schedule 4.4A (other than with respect to Franchises) have 
                   -------------                                              
     not been obtained, Seller shall use its best efforts to keep such 
     agreements in effect and to give Buyer the benefit of such agreements to 
     the same extent as if they had been assigned to Buyer. 
 
          (c) Any waiting period (and any extension thereof) under the HSR Act 
     applicable to the purchase of the Transferred Assets contemplated hereby 
     shall have expired or shall have been terminated, and no action shall have 
     been instituted by any  
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     Governmental Authority with jurisdiction over the enforcement of antitrust 
     laws challenging or seeking to enjoin the consummation of the transactions 
     contemplated under this Agreement which such action shall not have been 
     withdrawn or terminated. 
 
     9.4  Buyer's Deliveries'.  Buyer shall have delivered the documents and 
          ------------------                                                   
other items referred to in Article XIII hereof. 
 
     9.5  No Proceedings.  No action, suit or proceeding which has a 
          --------------                                               
reasonable likelihood of success shall be pending or threatened by or before any 
Governmental Authority to enjoin, restrain, prohibit or obtain substantial 
damages from Seller in respect of any of the transactions contemplated by this 
Agreement, or which would be reasonably likely to prevent or make illegal the 
consummation of any transactions contemplated by this Agreement. 
 
                                   ARTICLE X 
 
                       Conditions to Buyer's Obligations' 
                       ---------------------------------  
 
     The obligation of Buyer to consummate the Closing shall be subject to the 
fulfillment, prior to or at Closing, of each of the following conditions unless 
waived by Buyer in writing: 
 
     10.1  Seller's Representations' and Warranties.  The representations and  
           ---------------------------------------- 
warranties made by Seller in Article IV hereof shall be true and correct on and 
as of the Closing Date (other than representations and warranties made as of a 
specific date, which shall be true and correct as of the date specified) with 
the same effect as though each such representation and warranty had been made or 
given on and as of the Closing Date, except for such failures to be true and 
correct as would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse 
effect on the Transferred Assets, taken as a whole, Seller's financial condition 
(other than with respect to Cash not material to the operation of Seller's 
Business), taken as a whole, or the results of operations of Seller's Business, 
taken as a whole, or on Seller's ability to consummate the transactions and 
perform its other obligations under this Agreement. 
 
     10.2  Seller's Covenants'.  Seller shall have performed and complied in  
           ------------------ 
all material respects with all of the covenants set forth herein which are to be 
performed by it before or as of the Closing Date. 
 
     10.3  Consents 
           -------- 
 
          (a) As of the Closing Date, the number of Equivalent Basic Subscribers 
     served by Retained Franchises, shall not exceed 3% of the Subscriber 
     Threshold at Closing. 
 
          (b) Seller, with the reasonable cooperation of Buyer, shall have 
     obtained those Consents, other than Consents with respect to Franchises, 
     designated on Schedule 4.4(A) as required consents; provided, however, that 
                   ---------------                                               
     Buyer may elect to waive this condition to Closing with respect to any such 
     Consent and Seller shall have no liability under this Agreement in 
     connection with the failure to obtain such Consent, other than an 
     obligation to continue to attempt to obtain such Consents during the first 
     six (6) months following  
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     the Closing in accordance with Section 6.3 hereof and a continuing 
     obligation to cooperate with Buyer in obtaining such Consents thereafter. 
 
          (c) Any waiting period (and any extension thereof) under the HSR Act 
     applicable to the purchase of the Transferred Assets contemplated hereby 
     shall have expired or shall have been terminated, and no action shall have 
     been instituted by any Governmental Authority with jurisdiction over the 
     enforcement of antitrust laws challenging or seeking to enjoin the 
     consummation of the transactions contemplated under this Agreement which 
     such action shall not have been withdrawn or terminated. 
 
     10.4  Material Adverse Change.  No material adverse change in the Systems, 
           ----------------------- 
Transferred Assets, or the financial condition (other than with respect to Cash 
not material to the operation of Seller's Business), or results of operations of 
Seller's Business, each taken as a whole, other than matters affecting the cable 
television industry generally, shall have occurred since the date of this 
Agreement. 
 
     10.5  Seller's Deliveries'.  Seller shall have delivered the documents  
           -------------------- 
referred to in Article XII hereof. 
 
     10.6  No Proceedings.  No action, suit or proceeding which has a  
           -------------- 
reasonable likelihood of success shall be pending or threatened by or before any 
Governmental Authority to enjoin, restrain, prohibit or obtain substantial 
damages from Buyer in respect of any of the transactions contemplated by this 
Agreement, or which would be reasonably likely to prevent or make illegal the 
consummation of any transactions contemplated by this Agreement. 
 
     10.7  [Intentionally Deleted]. 
 
     10.8  Minimum Customers.  The Systems shall serve at least 332,271  
           ----------------- 
Equivalent Basic Subscribers, in the aggregate, reduced by the number of First 
Right Subscribers. 
 
     10.9  First Right Systems.  The Systems comprising the First Right  
           ------------------- 
Systems (as defined in Schedule 10.9) shall be subject to the limitations set 
forth on Schedule 10.9. 
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                                   ARTICLE XI 
 
 
                            Closing and Termination 
                            ----------------------- 
    11.1  Closing. 
          ------- 
 
         (a) Subject to all of the conditions set forth in Articles IX and X 
    having been satisfied or waived, the Closing shall occur at 10:00 a.m. 
    eastern standard time on November 1, 1999 or such earlier or later date (the 
    "Closing Date") established in accordance with the Agreement, at the offices 
    of Cooperman Levitt Winikoff Lester & Newman, P.C., 800 Third Avenue, New 
    York, New York  10022; provided, however, that the Closing shall occur on 
    October 1, 1999, at the time and place set forth above, in the event that 
    there are no Retained Franchises as of such date and all of the other 
    conditions in Articles IX and X have been satisfied or waived, subject to 
    Buyer's unilateral right to postpone the Closing until November 1, 1999. 
    The Closing shall be effective as of 12:01 a.m. on the Closing Date. 
 
         (b) If at any time prior to the scheduled Closing Date, all of the 
    conditions contained in Articles IX and X have been satisfied or waived, 
    Buyer and Seller may, but shall not be obligated to agree to a Closing Date 
    prior to November 1, 1999. 
 
         (c) If on November 1, 1999, all of the conditions contained in Articles 
    IX and X have not been satisfied or waived, then the Closing shall be 
    deferred until all such conditions have been satisfied or waived but not to 
    a date later than December 31, 1999.  Upon the last of the conditions being 
    so satisfied or waived, Seller or Buyer may give notice to the other of the 
    Closing, which notice shall state a date and time, not less than ten (10) 
    business days from the date of such notice, for the Closing to occur. 
 
         (d) Notwithstanding the provisions of Sections 11.1(a), (b), (c) and 
    (e) hereof, if a Closing Date has been established pursuant to the 
    provisions of Section 11.1(a), (b), (c) or (e) hereof, and there has 
    occurred a change in the United States financial markets that has a material 
    adverse effect, generally, on the ability to obtain debt or equity 
    financing, Buyer may defer the Closing Date to a date not more than three 
    months from the date of the originally scheduled Closing Date, which 
    deferred Closing Date may be a date beyond December 31, 1999. 
 
     11.2  Termination.  This Agreement (and the transactions contemplated  
           ----------- 
hereby) may not be terminated except as follows: 
 
          (a) Upon the mutual written consent of Seller and Buyer; 
 
          (b) By Seller, if Buyer is in material breach, and Seller is not in 
     material breach of this Agreement, and such breach has not been cured 
     within ten days following the delivery of notice thereof to Buyer (other 
     than with respect to any breach under Section 3.2(a) and 7.7 for which no 
     cure period will apply, except as expressly set forth therein); 
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          (c) By Buyer, if Seller is in material breach, and Buyer is not in 
     material breach of this Agreement, and such breach has not been cured 
     within ten days following the delivery of notice thereof to Seller; 
 
          (d) By Buyer or Seller, as applicable, pursuant to the provisions of 
     Sections 3.2(a), 7.7, 8.2, 14.1 or 14.2 thereof. 
 
          (e) By either party, if the Closing has not occurred on or before 
     December 31, 1999, or such later date as provided in Sections 11.1(d) and 
     (e) hereof. 
 
     11.3  Effect of Termination. 
           --------------------- 
 
          (a) If this Agreement is terminated by Seller pursuant to Section 
     11.2(b) hereof, then (i) the principal balance of the Purchase Price Escrow 
     Deposit shall be paid to Seller, together with all interest or other 
     earnings thereon and (ii) unless Buyer's breach results from the withdrawal 
     by Buyer's lenders of the Commitment Letter as a result of a change in 
     United States financial markets that has a material effect generally on the 
     ability to obtain debt or equity financing, Seller shall be entitled to 
     recover from Buyer its actual damages (including all damages resulting from 
     lost business opportunity) and its transaction costs and expenses in an 
     aggregate amount not to exceed $45,000,000, less the amount of the Purchase 
     Price Escrow Deposit delivered to Seller.  Buyer acknowledges that the 
     amount of the Purchase Price Escrow Deposit (and interest thereon) is the 
     minimum amount of damages that would be suffered by Seller as a result of 
     Buyer's breach, that it reasonably reflects the unascertainable costs and 
     expenses that would be incurred and the unascertainable loss that would be 
     suffered by Seller as a result of Buyer's breach, and that it would not 
     constitute a penalty, and Buyer agrees not to contest Seller's entitlement 
     to that amount as minimum damages for Buyer's breach. 
 
          (b) If Buyer is entitled to terminate this Agreement pursuant to 
     Section 11.2(c) hereof, then Buyer, at its election, shall have the right 
     to (i) terminate this Agreement and sue for actual damages, including 
     Buyer's transaction costs and expenses and damages arising from lost 
     business opportunity or (ii) obtain a decree of specific performance of 
     this Agreement and injunctive relief in connection therewith pursuant to 
     the provisions of Section 16.11 hereof. 
 
          (c) If this Agreement is terminated other than as a result of any 
     event described in Section 11.2(b), then the Purchase Price Escrow Deposit 
     shall be returned to Buyer, together with all interest or other earnings 
     thereon. 
 
          (d) Upon the termination of this Agreement in accordance with Section 
     11.2 hereof, the parties shall be relieved of any further obligations under 
     this Agreement other than (i) confidentiality obligations contained in 
     Sections 6.5 and 7.2, (ii) the expense allocation provisions under Section 
     16.1 and (iii) in respect of breaches of this Agreement occurring prior to 
     such termination, subject to the provisions of Section 11.3(a) hereof. 
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          (e) For a two year period following the termination of this Agreement, 
     Buyer shall not make offers of employment or otherwise for the services of 
     any employees of Seller while such employees remain in the employment of 
     Seller or for a period of one year after the employment of such employees 
     shall cease, other than as a result of a general solicitation with respect 
     to employees below the management level. 
 
                                  ARTICLE XII 
 
                        Seller's Deliveries at Closing' 
                        ------------------------------  
 
     At Closing, Seller shall deliver the following to Buyer: 
 
     12.1  Instruments of Conveyance.  Such deeds, bills of sale, assignment  
            ------------------------ 
and assumption agreements and other instruments of transfer, all dated the 
Closing Date, as shall be necessary to effectively vest in Buyer good and 
marketable title in and to the Transferred Assets, free and clear of Liens other 
than Permitted Liens. 
 
      12.2  Bring-Down-Certificate--.  A bring-down certificate executed on  
            ------------------------ 
behalf of Seller by the secretary of the general partner of Seller's managing 
general partner to the effect that each the conditions to Closing set forth in 
Sections 10.1, 10.2, 10.3, 10.4 and 10.6 have been satisfied. 
 
      12.3  Secretary's Certificate'.  A certificate executed on behalf of  
            ------------------------ 
Seller by the Secretary of the general partner of Seller's managing general 
partner authenticating Seller's partnership agreement and certificate of limited 
partnership, certifying as to the incumbency, and authenticating the signatures 
of, those persons executing this Agreement and certificates or other documents 
delivered hereunder on behalf of Seller, and certifying as to the adoption and 
continuing effect of appropriate resolutions authorizing Seller's execution, 
delivery and performance of this Agreement. 
 
      12.4  Opinion of Counsel.  An opinion of Gallop, Johnson & Neuman, L.C., 
            ------------------ 
 substantially in the form of Exhibit E hereto. 
 
      12.5  Opinion of FCC Counsel.  The opinion of communications counsel to  
            ---------------------- 
Seller, substantially in the form of Exhibit F hereto. 
 
      12.6  Noncompetition Agreement.  The Noncompetition Agreement,  
            ------------------------ 
substantially in the form of Exhibit G hereto, duly executed by Seller, James 
DeSorrento and Jay R. Busch. 
 
      12.7  Indemnity Escrow Deposit Agreement. The Indemnity Escrow Deposit  
            ---------------------------------- 
Agreement, duly executed by Seller.  
 
      12.8  Bill of Sale and Assignment.  A Bill of Sale and Assignment dated  
            --------------------------- 
the Closing Date, substantially in the form of Exhibit H hereto. 
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      12.9  Escrow Instructions.  Instructions to the Purchase Price Deposit  
            ------------------- 
Escrow Agent with respect to the delivery of the Purchase Price Escrow Deposit, 
duly executed by Seller. 
 
     12.10  Good Standing Certificates.  Certificates of good standing and/or  
            -------------------------- 
existence issued by the respective Secretaries of States of the States of 
Missouri, Arizona, Colorado, Illinois, Indiana, Iowa, Michigan, Minnesota, Ohio 
and Wisconsin, and such other jurisdictions where Seller is qualified to 
transact business in connection with the operation of the Systems. 
 
     12.11  Other Documents. Such other instruments or documents as Buyer may  
            --------------- 
reasonably request. 
 
                                  ARTICLE XIII 
 
 
                         Buyer's Deliveries at Closing' 
                         -----------------------------  
 
     At Closing, Buyer shall deliver the following to Seller: 
 
     13.1  Purchase Price.  Payment of the Purchase Price in accordance with  
           -------------- 
Section 3.2(c) hereof. 
 
      13.2  Bill of Sale and Assignment.  A Bill of Sale and Assignment dated  
            --------------------------- 
the Closing Date, substantially in the form of Exhibit H hereto. 
 
      13.3  Bring-Down Certificate-.  A bring-down Certificate executed on  
            ----------------------- 
behalf of Buyer by the Manager of Buyer to the effect that the conditions to 
Closing set forth in Sections 9.1, 9.2 and 9.5 have been satisfied. 
 
      13.4  Secretary's Certificate'.  A certificate executed on behalf of  
            ------------------------ 
Buyer by Buyer's Secretary authenticating Buyer's certificate of formation and 
such portion of Buyer's operating agreement as may be required to identify those 
individuals or entities who are authorized to act on Buyer's behalf, certifying 
as to the incumbency, and authenticating the signatures of, officers executing 
this Agreement and certificates or other documents delivered hereunder on behalf 
of Buyer, and certifying as to the adoption and continuing effect of appropriate 
resolutions authorizing Buyer's execution, delivery and performance of this 
Agreement. 
 
      13.5  Opinion of Counsel.  An opinion of Cooperman Levitt Winikoff  
            ------------------ 
Lester & Neuman, P.C., substantially in the form of Exhibit I hereto. 
 
      13.6  Noncompetition Agreement.  The Noncompetition Agreement,  
            ------------------------ 
substantially in the form of Exhibit G hereto, duly executed by Buyer. 
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      13.7  Indemnity Escrow Deposit Agreement.  The Indemnity Escrow Deposit  
            ---------------------------------- 
Agreement, duly executed by Buyer. 
 
      13.8  Escrow Instructions.  Instructions to the Purchase Price Deposit  
            ------------------- 
Escrow Agent with respect to the delivery of the Purchase Price Escrow Deposit, 
duly executed by Buyer. 
 
      13.9  Good Standing Certificates.  Certificates of good standing and/or  
            -------------------------- 
existence issued by the respective Secretaries of State of the State of New York 
and such other jurisdictions where Buyer is required to qualify to transact 
business in connection with the operation of the Systems. 
 
     13.10  Other Documents. Such other instruments or documents as Seller  
            --------------- 
may reasonable request. 
 
 
                                  ARTICLE XIV 
 
 
                     Additional Matters Relating to Closing 
                     -------------------------------------- 
 
     14.1  Environmental Reports.  Buyer at its option and at its own expense, 
           ---------------------                                                 
may, within 60 days of the date of this Agreement, cause to be performed Phase I 
environmental site assessments and asbestos studies (the "Environmental 
                                                          ------------- 
Reports") of any of the Owned Real Estate by one or more reputable environmental 
firms designated by Buyer.  Buyer shall deliver to Seller copies of all 
Environmental Reports and Seller shall have the right to object to results 
thereof and to cause to be performed, within 60 days of the receipt of the 
Environmental Reports, additional Environmental Reports to be made at Seller's 
expense.  In the event the results of Buyer's Environmental Reports and Seller's 
Environmental Reports are not in agreement, Buyer and Seller shall work together 
in good faith to resolve any disagreement on or before the Closing Date.  If 
environmental conditions are uncovered as a result of obtaining such 
Environmental Reports and (i) remediation of such conditions is required by 
Environmental Law or such conditions, if not remediated, would reasonably be 
expected to subject Buyer to fines or penalties as a result of such conditions 
violating Environmental Law or (ii) Sellers' representations and warranties in 
Section 4.21 are breached, then Seller shall cause such remedial action to be 
performed in accordance with all applicable Environmental Laws, if the aggregate 
cost thereof is $1,000,000 or less; and (iii) if the cost of such remedial 
action exceeds $1,000,000 and Seller does not elect to cause remedial action to 
be performed in accordance with applicable Environmental Laws, Buyer may elect 
either to terminate this Agreement, or to accept the Transferred Assets without 
such remedial action having been taken, subject to a $1,000,000 adjustment to 
the Purchase Price paid at Closing.  If Seller remediates or Buyer accepts the 
Transferred Assets subject to an adjustment in Purchase Price pursuant to clause 
(ii) or (iii), then Buyer shall not be entitled to rely for any purpose on the 
representations and warranties of Seller to the extent they relate to the 
specific environmental problem requiring remediation and the specific property 
subject to the remediation requirement. 
 
     14.2  Risk of Loss; Condemnation. 
           --------------------------    
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          (a) Seller will bear the risk of any material loss or damage to the 
     Transferred Assets or the Systems resulting from fire, theft or other 
     casualty at all times prior to the Closing.  If any such loss or damage is 
     so substantial as to (i) prevent normal operation of any material portion 
     of the Systems or the replacement or restoration of the lost or damaged 
     property within 20 days after the occurrence of the event resulting in such 
     loss or damage, or (ii) materially adversely affect the business, 
     operations or financial condition of the Systems or Seller Business, Seller 
     will immediately notify Buyer of that fact and Buyer may elect to terminate 
     this Agreement.  If Buyer elects so to terminate this Agreement, Seller and 
     Buyer will be discharged of any and all obligations hereunder (other than 
     any obligations arising from a breach by either party of this Agreement). 
     If Buyer elects to consummate the transactions contemplated by this 
     Agreement notwithstanding such loss or damage, all insurance proceeds 
     payable as a result of the occurrence of the event resulting in such loss 
     or damage will be delivered by Seller to Buyer, or the rights to such 
     proceeds will be assigned by Seller to Buyer if not yet paid over to 
     Seller. 
 
          (b) If, prior to the Closing, all or any part of or interest in the 
     Transferred Assets is taken or condemned as a result of the exercise of the 
     power of eminent domain, or if a Governmental Authority having such power 
     informs Seller or Buyer that it intends to condemn all or any part of or 
     interest in the Transferred Assets, and such taking is so substantial as to 
     prevent normal operation of any material portion of the Systems (such event 
     being called, in either case, a "Taking"), then Buyer may terminate this 
     Agreement.  If Buyer elects to consummate the transactions contemplated by 
     this Agreement, notwithstanding such Taking, then (i) Buyer will have the 
     sole right, in the name of Seller, if Buyer so elects, to negotiate for, 
     claim, contest and receive all damages with respect to the Taking, (ii) 
     Seller will be relieved of its obligation to convey to Buyer the 
     Transferred Assets or interests that are the subject of the Taking, (iii) 
     at the Closing, Seller will assign to Buyer all of Seller's rights to all 
     damages payable with respect to such Taking and will pay to Buyer all 
     damages previously paid to Seller with respect to the Taking and (iv) 
     following the Closing, Seller will give Buyer such further assurances of 
     such rights and assignment with respect to the Taking as Buyer may from 
     time to time reasonably request. 
 
     14.3  Billing Transition.  Seller shall cooperate with Buyer in 
           ------------------                                          
connection with the transfer of all of the billing functions of the Systems to 
Buyer's billing vendor which transfer shall occur no later than six (6) months 
following the Closing Date.  During the transition period, Seller shall allow 
Buyer to utilize the services of Seller's billing vendor and Buyer shall 
reimburse Seller for all direct costs related thereto. 
 
     14.4  Search Results.  Buyer and Seller shall cooperate in obtaining 
           --------------                                                   
reasonably satisfactory UCC, lien and litigation search results with respect to 
the Systems and the cost of obtaining such search results shall be divided 
equally between Buyer and Seller. 
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     14.5  Retained Franchises.  After satisfaction or waiver of the 
           -------------------                                         
conditions precedent to the obligation of Seller and Buyer to consummate the 
Closing as set forth in Articles IX and X, the Retained Franchises and all 
assets related thereto shall be retained by Seller and subsequently transferred 
to Buyer or otherwise disposed of in accordance with the terms hereof. 
 
          (a) Concurrent with the Closing, Seller and Buyer shall enter into a 
     management agreement with respect to each of the Retained Franchises in 
     form and substance of reasonably agreed upon by Buyer and Seller (the 
     "Management Agreement"). 
 
          (b) Seller and Buyer shall continue to cooperate in attempting to 
     secure renewal or extension of, or Consent to the transfer of, as the case 
     may be, each Retained Franchise. 
 
          (c) The Retained Franchises shall be managed in accordance with the 
     Management Agreement and the Retained Franchise Price shall be released to 
     Buyer or Seller, as the case may be, in accordance with the terms of the 
     Retained Franchise Price Escrow Agreement. 
 
                                   ARTICLE XV 
 
 
                                Indemnification 
                                --------------- 
 
     15.1  Survival of Representations and Warranties.  The representations 
           ------------------------------------------                         
and warranties of each party contained in this Agreement or in any document 
delivered pursuant hereto shall be deemed to be continuing and shall survive the 
Closing and any investigations heretofore or hereafter made by any party or its 
representatives for a period of nine months; provided, however, that the 
representations and warranties set forth in Section 4.6 (with respect to title 
only), Section 4.7 (with respect to third party claims relating to Excluded 
Assets or periods prior to the Closing Date), Section 4.12(a), and Section 4.21 
shall survive until the expiration of the applicable statute of limitations. 
 
     15.2  Indemnification by Seller.  Seller shall indemnify and hold Buyer, 
           -------------------------                                            
its members, directors, officers, shareholders and agents harmless from and 
against any loss, cost, expense or other damages suffered by Buyer, its members, 
directors, officers, shareholders and agents resulting from, arising out of, or 
incurred with respect to:  (a) during the period of survival of such 
representation or warranty, the breach of any representation or warranty made by 
Seller herein or any certificate or instrument delivered pursuant hereto, (b) 
the failure by Seller to comply with any covenant of Seller set forth herein or 
in any instrument or certificate delivered hereunder, (c) the operation of the 
Systems prior to Closing, to the extent not assumed by Buyer or (d) the Excluded 
Assets. Seller's indemnity obligation to Buyer under clauses (a) and (b) above 
shall be Buyer's sole remedy against Seller with respect to such matters and 
shall be subject to the following limitations:  (x) Seller shall not be 
obligated to indemnify Buyer with respect to indemnification claims made by 
Buyer under such clause until such time as the aggregate amount of all such 
claims exceeds the sum of $10,000,000;  
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(y) if the aggregate amount of all such claims exceeds the sum of $10,000,000, 
the maximum aggregate amount of Seller's indemnity obligation to Buyer under 
such clause with respect to such claims shall be limited to the aggregate amount 
of such claims in excess of $10,000,000; and (z) in no event shall the aggregate 
amount of Seller's indemnity obligation to Buyer under this Section 15.2 exceed 
$30,000,000. Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, any 
indemnification claims with respect to Excluded Assets or third party claims 
relating to pre-closing obligations or ownership or operations of the Systems 
prior to Closing not assumed by Buyer shall not be subject to the limitations 
set forth in this Section. 
 
     15.3  Indemnification by Buyer.  Buyer shall indemnify and hold Seller, 
           ------------------------                                            
its partners, directors, officers, shareholders and agents harmless from and 
against any loss, cost, expense or other damages suffered by Seller, its 
partners, directors, officers, shareholders and agents resulting from, arising 
out of, or incurred with respect to:  (a) the operation of the Systems on or 
after the Closing Date; (b) during the period of survival of such representation 
or warranty, the breach of any representation or warranty made by Buyer herein 
or in any certificate delivered pursuant hereto; or (c) the failure by Buyer to 
comply with any covenant of Buyer set forth herein or in any certificate 
delivered hereunder.  Buyer's indemnity obligation to Seller under clauses (b) 
and (c) above shall be Seller's sole remedy against Buyer with respect to such 
matters and shall be subject to the following limitations:  (x) Buyer shall not 
be obligated to indemnify Seller with respect to indemnification claims made by 
Seller under such clause until such time as the aggregate amount of all such 
claims exceeds the sum of $10,000,000, (y) if the aggregate amount of all such 
claims exceeds the sum of  $10,000,000, the maximum aggregate amount of Buyer's 
indemnity obligations to Seller under such clause with respect to such claims 
shall be limited to the aggregate amount of such claims in excess of $10,000,000 
and (z) in no event shall the aggregate amount of Buyer's indemnity obligation 
to Seller under this Section 15.3 exceed $30,000,000.  Anything herein to the 
contrary notwithstanding , any indemnification claim with respect to the 
operation of the Systems on or after the Closing or pre-closing obligation 
assumed by Buyer shall not be subject to the limitations set forth in this 
Section. 
 
     15.4  Defense of Claims.  If any third party shall assert any claim 
           -----------------                                               
against Seller, Buyer or their respective directors, officers, shareholders, 
partners, members or agents, which, if successful, would entitle the latter to 
indemnification under this Article XV, the latter (the "Indemnified Party") 
shall give written notice of such claim to the party from whom it intends to 
seek indemnification (the "Indemnifying Party") and the Indemnifying Party shall 
have the right to assume the defense of such claim at its expense.  If the 
Indemnifying Party does assume such defense, it shall indemnify and hold the 
Indemnified Party harmless from and against any and all losses, damages and 
liabilities caused by or arising out of any settlement or judgment of such 
claim.  In addition, the Indemnified Party shall have the right to participate 
in the defense of such claim at its expense, in which case (i) the Indemnifying 
Party shall cooperate in providing information to and consultation with the 
Indemnified Party about the claim; and (ii) the Indemnifying Party shall not 
consent to the entry of judgment or enter into any settlement without the prior 
written consent of the Indemnified Party, unless such judgment or settlement 
shall be for money damages only, payable by the Indemnifying Party, and shall 
include as an unconditional term thereof the giving by the claimant or the 
plaintiff of a release of the Indemnified Party from  
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all liability with respect thereto, satisfactory to the Indemnified Party. If 
the Indemnifying Party does not assume the defense of any such claim, the 
Indemnified Party may defend against or settle such claim in such manner and on 
such terms as it in good faith deems appropriate and shall be indemnified by the 
Indemnifying Party for the amount of any judgment or settlement and for all 
losses or expenses, including attorneys' fees, incurred by the Indemnified Party 
in connection with the defense or settlement of such claim. 
 
                                  ARTICLE XVI 
 
 
                                 Miscellaneous 
                                 ------------- 
 
     16.1  Expenses.  Except as otherwise expressly provided for in this 
           --------                                                        
Section 16.1 or elsewhere in this Agreement, each party hereto shall pay its own 
expenses and costs relating to the negotiation, execution and performance of 
this Agreement.  Seller and Buyer shall each bear all of its own costs and 
expenses incurred in securing the appropriate governmental approvals to the 
assignment of the Assumed Contracts. 
 
     16.2  Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted 
           -------------                                                       
according to the laws of the State of Delaware without reference to the rules of 
conflict of laws. 
 
     16.3  Notices.  All notices, requests, demands and other communications 
           -------                                                             
hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given when 
personally delivered or telecopied, or five days after mailed, certified or 
registered mail, with postage prepaid addressed as follows (or to such other 
person or address as the party to receive such notice may have designated from 
time to time by notice in writing pursuant hereto): 
 
     If to Seller: 
 
          Triax Midwest Associates, L.P. 
          100 Fillmore Street, Suite 600 
          Denver, Colorado 80206 
          Attention:  Jay R.  Busch 
          Telecopy:  (303) 333-1110 
 
     With copies (which shall not constitute effective notice) to: 
 
          Gallop, Johnson & Neuman, L.C. 
          1600 Interco Corporate Tower 
          101 South Hanley Road 
          St. Louis, Missouri  63105 
          Attention:  Linda C. Shubow 
          Telecopy:  (314) 862-1219 
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     If to Buyer: 
 
          Mediacom LLC 
          100 Crystal Run Road 
          Middletown, New York  10941-9769 
          Attention:  Rocco B. Commisso 
          Telecopy:  (914) 695-2639 
 
 
     With a copy (which shall not constitute effective notice) to: 
 
          Cooperman Levitt Winikoff Lester & Newman, P.C. 
          800 Third Avenue 
          New York, New York  10022 
          Attention:  Robert L. Winikoff 
          Telecopy:  (212) 755-2839 
 
     16.4  Definition of Agreement.  Unless the context clearly otherwise 
           -----------------------                                          
requires, as used herein, the term "Agreement" means this Agreement and the 
Schedules and Exhibits hereto.  The words "herein", "hereof' and "hereunder" and 
other words of similar import refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to any 
particular Article, Section, Paragraph or other subdivision. 
 
     16.5  Heading, Gender, Person.  The headings to Articles and Sections of 
           -----------------------                                              
this Agreement are for reference only and shall not be used in construing the 
provisions hereof or otherwise affect the meaning hereof.  The use of the neuter 
pronoun "it" shall also refer to as appropriate to the masculine and/or feminine 
gender.  The use of the singular herein shall, where appropriate, be deemed to 
include the plural and vice versa.  As used herein, the word "person" refers to 
any individual, corporation, partnership, trust, governmental body or authority 
or other organization or entity. 
 
     16.6  Counterparts; Third-Party Beneficiaries.  This Agreement may be 
           ---------------------------------------                           
executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original 
but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.  No 
provision of this Agreement, other than as expressly provided in Article XV, is 
intended to confer upon any person other than the parties hereto any rights or 
remedies hereunder. 
 
     16.7  Entire Agreement.  This Agreement embodies the entire agreement and 
           ----------------                                                      
understanding between Seller and Buyer with respect to the subject matter hereof 
and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings related to the subject 
matter hereof other than any letter or agreement between Buyer and Seller that 
specifically refers to this Section 16.7.  There are no representations, 
warranties, covenants, promises or agreements on the part of either party to the 
other hereto which are not explicitly set forth herein. 
 
     16.8  Modifications.  Any modification, amendment or waiver of or with 
           -------------                                                      
respect to any provision of this Agreement or any agreement, instrument or 
document  
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delivered pursuant hereto shall not be effective unless it shall be in 
writing and signed by Seller and Buyer and shall designate specifically the 
terms and provisions so modified. 
 
     16.9  Assignment and Binding Effect.  Except as provided in Section 7.7 
           -----------------------------                                       
neither party may assign this Agreement or any interest herein without the prior 
written consent of the other party hereto and any purported assignment without 
such consent shall be void; provided, that Buyer may assign its rights and 
obligations under this Agreement to one or more acquisition subsidiaries 
affiliated with Buyer by virtue of common control or ownership, without the 
consent of Seller, so long as Buyer shall remain liable with respect to its 
obligations, and Seller shall be entitled to enforce its rights directly against 
Buyer, hereunder, including, but not limited to, the rights and obligations 
under Section 7.7.  Subject to the foregoing, this Agreement shall be binding 
upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, their respective 
successors and assigns. 
 
     16.10  Public Announcements.  Seller and Buyer will consult with each 
            --------------------                                             
other before issuing, and will provide each other the opportunity to review and 
comment upon, any press release or other written public statement (or relevant 
portion thereof) relating to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and 
shall not issue any such press release or other written public statement or make 
any such press release or public statement prior to such consultation, except as 
may be required by applicable law, court process or by obligations pursuant to 
any listing agreement with any national securities exchange. 
 
     16.11  Specific Performance.  Seller and Buyer acknowledge that the 
            --------------------                                           
subject matter of this Agreement is unique and in the case of any breach of the 
terms, covenants or conditions to this Agreement, Buyer will have the right to a 
decree of specific performance of this Agreement and the right to injunctive 
relief in connection therewith, without any bond or security being required and 
without the necessity of showing actual damages, upon proper action instituted 
by Buyer.  In the event of any action by Buyer to enforce this Agreement, Seller 
hereby waives the defense that there is an adequate remedy at law.  In the event 
of a breach or default which results in the filing of an action by Buyer for 
specific performance or injunctive relief, the prevailing party in such action 
shall be entitled to receive reimbursement from the non-prevailing party for its 
costs and expenses in connection therewith, including reasonable attorneys' 
fees. 
 
                                  ARTICLE XVII 
 
 
                                  Definitions 
                                  ----------- 
 
     17.1  Defined Terms. 
           -------------    
 
           (a)  "Assumed Contracts" means the Franchises, FCC Licenses, FAA  
                 -----------------       
     Licenses, Other Permits, Real Estate Leases, Equipment Leases, Pole 
     Attachment Agreements, Programming Agreement, Retransmission Agreement, 
     Advertising Agreements, Vehicle Leases, Customer Agreements, Service Orders 
     and Other Contracts, to the extent not excluded pursuant to Section 1.2. 
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           (b)  "Basic Customer Equivalent" means, as of any date, an  
                 -------------------------             
     equivalent to an Individual Basic Customer, the number of Basic Customer 
     Equivalents served by a System being equal, as of any date, to the quotient 
     of (x) the aggregate billings by that System for one month's Basic Service 
     and Expanded Basic Service, if offered, during the last full month ending 
     on or prior to such date to active Customers consisting of commercial 
     establishments, residential multiple dwelling units, other Customers that 
     are billed for such service on a bulk basis and single family households 
     that pay rates other than the System's regular monthly standard or senior 
     rate for Basic Service or Expanded Basic Service (collectively the "Non- 
     Standard Customers"), divided by (y) that System's regular monthly Customer 
     rate for Basic Service and Expanded Basic Service, if offered, in effect 
     during such month, excluding all billings to any Non-Standard Customer that 
     (a) has not paid at least one month's payment in full without discount, (b) 
     is, as of the applicable Cut-Off Date, more than 90 days in arrears in 
     payment for services based on such billing reports (provided that a 
     Customer's account shall not be considered in arrears in payment as a 
     result of amounts more than 90 days in arrears not exceeding $10 or as a 
     result of any unpaid amounts that are the subject of a bona fide dispute), 
     (c) is pending disconnection for any reason or (d) is a seasonal Customer 
     paying less than the standard or senior rate, as applicable, of such 
     System's Basic Service or Expanded Service as of the date of determination. 
     For purposes of the foregoing there shall be excluded all billings which 
     represent an installation or other non-recurring charge, a late fee or 
     other charge for late payment, a charge for equipment, a charge for any 
     outlet or connection other than the first outlet or first connection in any 
     single family household or, with respect to a bulk account, in any 
     residential unit (e.g., an individual apartment or rental unit), a charge 
     for any tiered service, a charge for any pay TV, or a pass-through charge 
     for sales taxes, line-itemized franchise fees and charges, PEG access fees, 
     FCC fees, and similar items. 
 
           (c)  "Basic Service" with respect to any System means the cable  
                 -------------           
     television service described as "Basic" on Schedule 4.8. 
                                                ------------  
 
           (d)  "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 
                 ----                                                       
 
           (e)  "Communications Act" means the Communications Act of 1934, as  
                 ------------------                            
     amended, including but not limited to the Cable Communications Policy Act 
     of 1984, as amended, the Cable Television Consumer Protection and 
     Competition Act of 1992, as amended, and the Telecommunications Act of 
     1996, as amended, and the rules and regulations thereunder. 
 
           (f)  "Customer" means any person who is paying Seller for cable  
                 --------                    
     television services provided by the Systems. 
 
           (g)  "Cut-Off Date" means the scheduled monthly cut-off date of  
                 ------------             
     CableData billing reports for the Systems, if the Closing occurs within 
     seven days of such date, or if the Closing occurs on any other date, the 
     Closing Date. 
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           (h)  "ERISA" means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of  
                 -----                      
     1974, as amended. 
 
           (i)  "Equivalent Basic Subscribers" means, as of any date, without  
                 ----------------------------                
     duplication, the aggregate number of Individual Basic Customers and Basic 
     Customer Equivalents. The number of Equivalent Basic Subscribers shall not 
     include Individual Basic Subscribers and Basic Customer Equivalents (i) 
     whose accounts are more than 60 days but less than 90 days in arrears 
     (provided that a Customer's account shall not be considered in arrears in 
     payment as a result of amounts more than 60 days in arrears not exceeding 
     $10 or as a result of amounts that are subject to a bona fide dispute), to 
     the extent the number of such Individual Basic Customers and Basic Customer 
     Equivalents exceed, in the aggregate, more than 1.5% of the total number of 
     Equivalent Basic Subscribers or (ii) any Customer who comes within the 
     definition of Individual Basic Customer or Basic Customer Equivalent 
     because (A) its account has been credited, compromised or written off after 
     the date of this Agreement, other than in the ordinary course of business 
     consistent with past practice (for reasons such as service interruption or 
     waiver of late charges), but not for the purpose of making it qualify as an 
     Individual Basic Customer or Basic Customer Equivalents or as prohibited by 
     this Agreement or (B) it was obtained through offers made, promotions 
     conducted or discounts given that were prohibited by this Agreement or not 
     in the ordinary course of business. 
 
           (j)  "Expanded Basic Service" with respect to any System means the  
                 ----------------------                
     cable television service described as "CPST" on Schedule 4.8. 
                                                     ------------  
 
           (k)  "FAA" means the Federal Aeronautical Administration. 
                 ---                                                 
 
           (l)  "FCC" means the Federal Communications Commission. 
                 ---                                               
 
           (m)  "First Right Subscribers" means the number of Equivalent  
                 -----------------------             
     Basic Subscribers as of the Closing Date served by First Right Systems as 
     defined in Schedule 10.9. 
                -------------  
 
           (n)  "GAAP" means generally accepted accounting principles,  
                 ----                            
     consistently applied. 
 
           (o)  "Governmental Authorities" means (i) the United States of  
                 ------------------------             
     America, (ii) any state, commonwealth, territory or possession of the 
     United States of America and any political subdivision thereof (including 
     counties, municipalities and the like) and (iii) any agency, authority or 
     instrumentality of the foregoing. 
 
           (p)  "Individual Basic Customer" means, as of any date, any  
                 -------------------------          
     Customer of a System determined as of the applicable Cut-Off Date who is an 
     active Customer of that System's Basic Service (exclusive of seasonal 
     Customers paying less than the standard or senior rate, as applicable, for 
     Basic Service or any Customer who was added as a result of a sales, 
     marketing or promotional program which offered credits or discounts and who 
     has not paid for one month of Basic Service in full at the standard or 
     senior monthly rate  
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     in the month prior to Closing, as of the Cut-Off Date), has paid at least 
     one month's payment in full without discount at that System's regular or 
     senior monthly customer rates for Basic Service, is not pending 
     disconnection for any reason and is not, as of the applicable cut-off date 
     of the Cable-Data billing reports, more than 90 ninety days in arrears in 
     payment for any service based on such billing reports (provided that a 
     Customer's account shall not be considered in arrears in payment as a 
     result of amounts more than 90 days in arrears not exceeding $10 or as a 
     result of any unpaid amounts that are the subject of a bona fide dispute). 
 
           (q)  "Legal Requirement" means any statute, ordinance, law, rule  
                 -----------------                      
     or regulation of any Governmental Authority and judicial interpretations 
     thereof. 
 
           (r)  "Order" means an order, award, judgment or decree of any  
                 -----                   
     court, tribunal, arbitrator or panel of arbitrators. 
 
           (s)  "Renewal Notice" means a request for renewal under and  
                 --------------           
     satisfying the requirements of Section 626 of the Communications Act. 
 
           (t)  "Retained Franchise Price" means the product of (i) the  
                 ------------------------             
     number of Equivalent Basic Subscribers served by Retained Franchises and 
     (ii) $2,167. 
 
           (u)  "Seller's knowledge," or a variation thereof, means the  
                 ------------------                   
     actual knowledge as of the applicable date, after due inquiry, including 
     consultation with Seller's regional managers, of James DeSorrento, Jay R. 
     Busch, Christopher R. O'Toole, Samuel S. Street and Mark G. Sanford. 
 
           (v)  "Subscriber Threshold" means the difference between 341,500,  
                 --------------------         
     and the number of First Right Subscribers, if any, as of the Closing. 
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     17.2  Additional Definitions. 
           ---------------------- 
 
           Defined Term                                   Section 
           ------------                                   ------- 
           Accounts Receivable                            1.1(a) 
           Acquisition Subscribers                        3.3(e) 
           Advertising Agreements                         1.1(f) 
           Agreement                                      16.4 
           Allocated Subscribers                          3.3(e) 
           Arbitrator                                     3.4(b) 
           Assumed Contracts                              17.1(a) 
           Assumed Liabilities                            2.1 
           Basic Customer Equivalent                      17.1(b) 
           Basic Service                                  17.1(c) 
           Brokers                                        4.16 
           Buyer                                          Preamble 
           Capital Expenditures Amount                    3.3(d) 
           Capital Expenditures Budget                    3.3(d) 
           Cash                                           1.2(a) 
           Certificate                                    3.2(a) 
           CLI Reports                                    4.17(b) 
           Closing Date                                   11.1(a) 
           Code                                           17.1(d) 
           Commitment Letter                              3.2(a) 
           Communications Act                             17.1(e) 
           Consents                                       4.4 
           Customer                                       17.1(f) 
           Customer Agreements                            1.1(f) 
           Cut-Off Date                                   17.1(g) 
           DOJ                                            8.1 
           Environmental Law                              4.21(a) 
           Environmental Reports                          14.1 
           Equipment                                      1.1(d) 
           Equipment Leases                               1.1(f) 
           Equivalent Basic Subscribers                   17.1(i) 
           ERISA                                          17.1(h) 
           Escrow Cutoff Date                             3.3(h) 
           Estimate Statement                             3.3 
           Excluded Assets                                1.2 
           Expanded Basic Service                         17.1(j) 
           FAA                                            17.1(k) 
           FAA Licenses                                   1.1(e) 
           FCC                                            17.1(l) 
           FCC Licenses                                   1.1(e) 
           Final Statement                                3.4(a) 
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           Defined Term                                   Section 
           ------------                                   ------- 
           Final Adjustment Amount                        3.4(a) 
           First Right Subscribers                        17.1(m) 
           First Right Systems                            Schedule 10.9 
           Franchises                                     1.1(e) 
           FTC                                            8.1 
           GAAP                                           17.1(o) 
           Governmental Authorities                       17.1(p) 
           Hazardous Substances                           4.21(a) 
           HSR Act                                        8.1 
           HSR Report                                     8.1 
           Indemnified Party                              15.4 
           Indemnifying Party                             15.4 
           Indemnity Deposit Escrow Agent                 3.2(b) 
           Indemnity Deposit Escrow Agreement             3.2(b) 
           Indemnity Escrow Deposit                       3.2(b) 
           Individual Basic Customer                      17.1(q) 
           Launch Incentive Payments                      1.1(h) 
           Leased Real Estate                             1.1(c) 
           Legal Requirement                              17.1(r) 
           Liens                                          4.3 
           Management Agreement                           14.5(a) 
           New Acquisitions                               3.3(e) 
           Notice of Disagreement                         3.4(a) 
           Order                                          17.1(s) 
           Other Contracts                                1.1(f) 
           Other Funds                                    3.2(a) 
           Other Permits                                  1.1(e) 
           Owned Real Estate                              1.1(c) 
           Plan                                           4.26(a) 
           Permitted Liens                                4.6(a) 
           Pole Attachment Agreements                     1.1(f) 
           Programming Agreements                         1.1(f) 
           Purchase Price                                 3.1 
           Purchase Price Deposit Escrow Agent            3.2(a) 
           Purchase Price Deposit Escrow Agreement        3.2(a) 
           Purchase Price Escrow Deposit                  3.2(a) 
           Real Estate                                    1.1(c) 
           Real Estate Leases                             1.1(f) 
           Redemption Fund                                3.3(h) 
           Renewal Notice                                 17.1(t) 
           Retained Franchises                            9.3 
           Retained Franchise Price                       17.1(u) 
           Retained Franchise Price Escrow Agent          3.2(d) 
           Retained Franchise Price Escrow Agreement      3.2(d) 
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           Defined Term                                   Section 
           ------------                                   ------- 
           Retransmission Agreements                      1.1(f) 
           Seller                                         Preamble 
           Seller's Business                              Preamble 
           Seller's Knowledge                             17.1(v) 
           Service Orders                                 1.1(f) 
           Settlement                                     3.3(h) 
           Subscriber Threshold                           17.1(w) 
           Systems                                        Preamble 
           Taking                                         14.2(b) 
           Transferred Assets                             1.1 
           Vehicle Leases                                 1.1(f) 
 
                                   * * * * * 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the 
date first above written. 
 
                                    SELLER: 
 
 
                                    TRIAX MIDWEST ASSOCIATES, L.P.: 
 
                                    By:  Triax Midwest General Partner, 
                                    its managing general partner 
                                    By:  Triax Midwest, L.L.C., 
                                    its sole general partner 
 
                                    By:_________________________________ 
                                    Name:_______________________________ 
                                    Title:______________________________ 
 
                                    BUYER: 
 
 
                                    MEDIACOM LLC 
 
 
                                    By: 
                                    ____________________________________ 
                                    Name: 
                                    ____________________________________ 
                                    Title: 
                                    ____________________________________ 
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THIS SCHEDULE CONTAINS SUMMARY INFORMATION EXTRACTED FROM THE CONSOLIDATED 
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS OF MEDIACOM LLC 
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES AND IS QUALIFIED IN ITS ENTIRETY BY REFERENCE TO 
SUCH FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. 
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